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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

OVERVIEW

On 18 June 2014, FINTHE A B EHE FR 2 7 (Shenzhen
Meiming Wenshi Trading Limited*, “SZMM") completed the
disposal of 5 & & # Bl B2 )B AR 72 & (Harbin China Distillery
Company Limited*, “Harbin China”) (“Harbin Disposal”)
and on 26 March 2014, BAPP Ethanol Holdings Limited
("BAPP"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which BAPP has conditionally agreed to sell all
its 100% equity interest in BAPP (Northwest) Limited, which
held 100% equity interest of & & P8 EB ¢ 72 51 6E R = #1 %
T A BR 72 &) (Ningxia West Bright New Resource Technology
Co., Ltd.*) at the consideration of RMB40 million (“BAPP
Disposal”), it represented the entire ethanol business segment
of the Group, so the Group reclassified the whole ethanol
business segment as assets held for sale as at the reporting
date. The revenue, cost of sales and various expenses related
to the whole ethanol business segment for the year ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2014 (the “Year”) were
included in the profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (net
of tax) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the Year, as comparative
figures.

For the Year, the continuing operations of the Group
achieved a revenue of approximately HK$80.00 million
(2013: HK$94.18 million), representing a decrease of 15.05%
from last year. Gross profit for the continuing operations
of the Group was approximately HK$11.10 million (2013:
HK$15.84 million).The loss (net of taxation) from continuing
operations was approximately HK$41.82 million and the gain
from discontinued operations (net of tax) was approximately
HK$142.88 million. Profit attributable to owners of
the parent was approximately HK$117.81 million (Loss
attributable to owners of the parent for 2013: HK$126.77
million) which was mainly due to the disposal gain arosed
from the Harbin Disposal. Profit per share from continuing
operations and discontinued operations for the Year was
HK7.73 cents (Loss per share from continuing operations and
discontinued operations for 2013: HK10.61 cents).

The Group will continue to control the costs and focus on
existing resources to further strengthen and grow the Group’s

businesses, both organically and through acquisitions when
appropriate opportunities arise.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Ethanol Business

The Group's ethanol business is principally engaged in
the production and sale of ethanol products and ethanol
byproducts in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The ordinary resolution to approve the Harbin Disposal
was duly passed by the shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders”) by way of poll at the adjourned
extraordinary general meeting held on 6 June 2014 and the
Harbin Disposal was completed on 18 June 2014. After that
date, Harbin China ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

Wine and Liquor Business

The Group's wine and liquor business is principally engaged
in the sale and distribution of wine and liquor in the PRC.
Currently, the Group operates a retail and distribution
network for selling wine and liquor in Guangzhou, Harbin
and Hunan Province of the PRC. The Group had 23 wine and
liquor specialty stores and 19 franchise stores in Guangzhou.

The Group is the exclusive distributor of Diancang Jiugui and
Meiming Wenshi in the PRC until May 2020.

Since 2012, the revenue of this business segment was
hit by the PRC government’s calls for cracking down
on extravagance in government departments and state-
owned institutions and enterprises as well as the plasticiser
contamination scandal. The operating environment of
the liquor industry in China remained difficult during the
Year. The Group will closely monitor the market situations
and trends, and adopt corresponding measures of risk
management to alleviate the negative impacts. Meanwhile,
the Group will continue to improve the product mix and
focus on higher margin products to grow its business. Apart
from strengthening the established markets, the Group will
strive to expand its retail and distribution network to other
parts of the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

Due to the government policy, during the Year, the wine
and liquor business recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$80.00 million (2013: HK$94.18 million), down 15.05%
when compared with last year and accounted for 40.97%
(2013: 21.37%) of the total revenue. Gross profit was
approximately HK$11.10 million (2013: HK$15.84 million),
representing a decrease of 29.90% from last year.

Animal Feed Business
During the Year, as the Group directed most of its resources
to the development of the Group’s wine and liquor business,
as a result the development of the Group’s animal feed
business was hindered.

The Group will continue to pursue additional potential
locations for future facilities, which would involve
consideration of a number of criteria including availability
of raw materials and infrastructure, potential strategic
partnerships, logistics and other market factors. In addition,
if the memorandum of understanding mentioned in the
paragraph headed Memorandum of Understanding of this
report materialises, the Company intends to utilise the land
for development of an eco-pasture base.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Group will continue to explore the new markets and
increase the promotion and marketing activities to expand
the existing business. The Group would also look for other
business and related profitable business for acquisition
purpose.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Acquisition

(i)

On 7 July 2014, the Company entered into a share
transfer agreement (“Share Transfer Agreement”)
with BEEIERRBUEARAFTHEEEAREE R A
(Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade
Liability Group Co., Ltd.*, “Beidahuang Business
Group”) and BEIRBIEARYAEEER
2 7] (Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Logistics
Group Limited*, “Beidahuang Logistics Group”)
(collectively, the “Vendors”), whereby the Company
has conditionally agreed to purchase an aggregate
of 51% equity interest in It KRR MEZBRABR A
A] (Beidahuang Food Industry Park Co. Ltd.*) at the
consideration of RMB300 million.

During the course of the due diligence review
conducted by the Company, it had come to the
attention of the Company and the Vendors that
it was uncertain as to when and whether certain
conditions precedent could be fulfilled. After careful
consideration of all the circumstances surrounding the
acquisition, the Board decided not to proceed with
the acquisition. On 25 August 2014, the Company
and the Vendors entered into a termination agreement
to terminate the Share Transfer Agreement with
immediate effect. Upon such termination, neither
party shall have any further obligations or liabilities
towards the other, nor any claims against the other in
connection with the Share Transfer Agreement.

The Board considered that the termination of the
Share Transfer Agreement is in the interest of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole and has
no material adverse impact on the existing business
position of the Group.

W s

(i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

(ii)

8

On 25 August 2014, SZMM entered into a share
transfer agreement with dt KFE& #ERHD R QD
Al (Beidahuang Marketing Co. Ltd.*,"”Beidahuang
Marketing Co.”) and Mr. Hu Guang Sheng (as
vendors) whereby (i) the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire 10% equity interest in JZFII4L A FE
4 B R SEBCX B R A A (Shenzhen Beidahuang Green
Food Distribution Limited*, the “Target Company”)
from Beidahuang Marketing Co. and (ii) the Company
has conditionally agreed to acquire 40% equity
interest in the Target Company from Mr. Hu Guang
Sheng at an aggregate consideration of RMB2.5
million. Upon completion of the acquisition (the
" Acquisition”), Beidahuang Marketing Co. and SZMM
increase the registered capital of the Target Company
from RMBO.5 million to RMB10 million. The increased
capital were contributed by Beidahuang Marketing
Co. and SZMM in equal shares in the amount of
RMB4.75 million each (the “SZMM Capital Injection”).
Following completion of the Acquisition, the Company
appointed 3 directors to the board of directors to the
Target Company which will comprise of 5 directors.

The consideration has been determined with reference
to (i) the valuation report issued by an independent
professional valuer, R T @& E V(L EHFT
(Shenzhen Yunde Appraisal Firm*), appointed by the
Target Company showing that the shareholder’s equity
value of the Target Company was RMB4.39 million as
at 31 July 2014 and (ii) the Company also has its own
distribution channel in Guangdong. By acquiring the
Target Company, the Company can run the existing
chain store business more effectively and efficiently by
distributing the products currently sold by the Target
Company in its wholesaling and retailing business.
The Acquisition can also diversify the Group’s business
model, reduce its risk and increase its market shares in
Guangdong and Shenzhen.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEEER A T

Ynual Report 2014 F 3§

N-—E—NENA-+ERB FIIESR
i KREHEBRHBR AT ([JERFR
EHEAR)RPEESE ERER)
R R EERE B OAARE
BIEHRERIEAFE A R BE R
ARG ERMEXER AR ([BEZ
NA) Z10% 8% & (i)AA R E B 1§
RERAHEECEREEIZARZ40%
A4 - B R E A AR %2,500,0007T ° 72
WHEEE([WEFE])TKE X
REEARRRIIEZHEBERAR 25
fit & N AR #500,000 08 = AR
10,000,0007T © & i1 2 & A E R Ib K5t
EHATRRINEGSFINEESAR
#4,750,000cFEHE ([RYIERE
Bl RBEETKE AAFEM
BERAREZESE (KHSBREFEK)E
F3BES-

REDE2ENHERRRIZE 2B
BEEEMAY T ZREETHEHEM
BHZEERES ERPERR O
FEtA=+T—HEBRARIZRE#E=E
B A A R #4,390,0007T M (i)A R &R
BRI EEEBCHDHEBERET -
FRWHEBERAR] ARG AJHERENR
BERTEXEBANDHEEARERLE
ZEMMUEBRRARER T EER
BEHEEER - WHEEEINZ /IR
SEEBEN RERNSEZRAR K
ENAEERERE RFRYIT 2 Tishn
o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The ordinary resolution to approve the Acquisition was
duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 17 February
2015 and SZMM Capital Injection was completed on
4 March 2015 and after that day, the Target Company
becomes a subsidiary of the Group.

Disposal

()

(ii)

(iii)

On 24 February 2014, SZMM (as vendor) entered into
an agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement dated 26 February 2014) with Z &4t

REMEHBR AR (Zhaodong Beidahuang
Biotechnology Limited*) and & EE R KT H /)
EERER A A (Linxiang Huayin Changjiang
Small and Medium Enterprises Guarantee Limited*)
(as purchasers), pursuant to which SZMM has
conditionally agreed to sell all its 75% equity interest
in Harbin China to the purchasers at the consideration
of RMB40 million.

The ordinary resolution to approve the Harbin Disposal
was duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll at
the adjourned extraordinary general meeting held on
6 June 2014 and the Harbin Disposal was completed
on 18 June 2014. After that date, Harbin China
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

On 16 December 2014, SZMM disposed the entire
issued share capital of Ningxia Kelong Industrial
Company Limited (“Kelong Disposal”) to an
independent third party for a cash consideration of
RMB6 million.

On 26 March 2014, BAPP entered into an agreement
with an independent third party, pursuant to which
BAPP has conditionally agreed to sell all its 100%
equity interest in BAPP (Northwest) Limited, which
held 100% equity interest of ZEE FAI K HEER =
FE T AR AR (Ningxia West Bright New Resource
Technology Co., Ltd.*), at the consideration of RMB40
million.

&
(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

The Harbin Disposal, Kelong Disposal and BAPP Disposal
provide good opportunities for the Group to improve its
financial position and the sale proceeds could enhance
the Group’s working capital position as well as providing
additional capital resources for the Group to make future
investment in potential projects when opportunity arises and
the disposals are in line with the Group’s overall business
strategy.

Memorandum of Understanding

On 12 August 2013, the Company entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with an
independent third party (“Vendor”) pursuant to which the
Company intended to acquire and the Vendor intended
to sell 100% of the issued share capital of a company
(the "Target”) (“Possible Acquisition”). The Target and its
subsidiary (“Target Group”) are in the process of acquiring a
company incorporated in the PRC which is holding a piece of
multipurpose agricultural land (the “Land”) in the Yinchuan
City of Ningxia Province, the PRC. The Company intended to
acquire the Land for the development of an eco-pasture base.

Pursuant to the MOU, the Vendor and the Company would
negotiate in good faith the terms of a formal agreement
for the Possible Acquisition within 6 months after the date
of the MOU. The terms for the formal agreement for the
Possible Acquisition have not yet been finalized at the end
of the 6 months, pending the results of the due diligence
on the Target Group. After negotiation, the Company and
the Vendor agreed that additional time was needed for the
Company to complete its due diligence on the Target Group.

Accordingly, the Company and the Vendor entered into the
first extension agreement on 24 February 2014, the second
extension agreement on 22 August 2014 and the third
extension agreement on 23 February 2015 respectively to
further extend the MOU for 6 months to 22 August 2015 in
order to enable the Company to complete its due diligence
on the Target Group. Save as aforesaid, all other terms of the
MOU remain unchanged. The Company will make further
announcement on the progress of the Possible Acquisition as
and when appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Co-operation

As announced on 28 January 2014, the Group has started
to explore co-operation opportunity with R EEBBEZE
R 2 7] (CECT-Chinacomm Communications Co., Limited*,
“"CECT-Chinacomm”), a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability. CECT-Chinacomm and its ultimate
beneficial owners are independent of and not connected with
the Company and its connected persons. CECT-Chinacomm
has the development right in respect of a parcel of land in the
Beijing Economic and Technological Development Area and
will construct a project known as Beijing Wireless Broadband
Industrial Park (the “Project”) on the parcel of land. An
indirect subsidiary of CECT-Chinacomm is appointed as the
operating company of the Project, and has legally obtained
the Land Use Right Certificate, the Planning Permit and the
Construction Land Use Permit.

The co-operation is still in the discussion stage and no formal
agreement has been entered into by the parties at the date of
this report. The Board expects that the Company will be able
to join CECT-Chinacomm and its subsidiary to develop the
Project for commercial benefits.

Formation of Joint Venture Company

(i) On 7 July 2014, SZMM entered into a joint venture
agreement (“JV Agreement 1”) with Harbin China to
form a joint venture company (the “JV Formation”)
that principally engaged in developing logistic business
in Southern China, such as Hong Kong and Shenzhen.
The estimated total registered capital of the joint
venture company will be RMB20 million. Each of
SZMM and Harbin China is expected to contribute
RMB10.2 million and RMB9.8 million, representing
51% and 49% of the estimated total registered
capital of the joint venture company respectively. As
announced on 11 July 2014 and 25 August 2014,
the JV Formation is subjected to (among others) the
Shareholders’ approval requirement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

(ii)

12

On 24 November 2014, the parties to the JV
Agreement 1 have decided not to proceed with
the JV Formation. SZMM and Harbin China entered
into a termination agreement to terminate the JV
Agreement 1 with immediate effect. Pursuant to the
termination agreement, neither party shall have any
further obligations or liabilities towards the other,
nor any claims against the other in connection with
the JV Agreement 1. The Board considered that the
termination of the JV Agreement 1 has no material
adverse impact on the operations of the Group.

On 22 January 2015, SZMM entered into a joint
venture agreement (the “JV Agreement 2") with JZ&=3I|
MRZEEHEE SHBMR QA (Shenzhen Shenda Hengye
Trading Company Limited*, “Hengye”), pursuant to
which SZMM and Hengye agreed to form the Joint
Venture Company (“JV Company”) to be principally
engaged in the E-commerce business in Qianhai area
in the PRC, which would principally include food
trading and electrical and mechanical equipment
business. Pursuant to the JV Agreement 2, the
estimated total registered capital of the JV Company
will be RMB200 million. Each of SZMM and Hengye
is expected to contribute RMB60 million and RMB140
million, representing 30% and 70% of the estimated
total registered capital of the JV Company respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Subscription of New Shares under General Mandate
and Refreshed General Mandate

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 21 January 2014, the Company entered into
the subscription agreements with the independent
subscribers for the subscription of an aggregate
239,032,479 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.405 per subscription share.

The above subscription was completed on 7 February
2014 and the Company issued 239,032,479 shares of
the Company to 7 independent subscribers. The net
proceeds from the subscription were approximately
HK$96.5 million which were used by the Company
for the Group’s business development and general
working capital purposes.

On 29 April 2014, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements with the independent
subscribers for the subscription of an aggregate
80,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.7 per subscription share.

The above subscription was completed on 16 May
2014 and the Company issued 80,000,000 shares of
the Company to 4 independent subscribers. The net
proceeds from the subscription were approximately
HK$55.97 million which were applied to finance the
business development and general working capital of
the Group.

On 24 June 2014, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements with the independent
subscribers for the subscription of an aggregate
82,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.7 per subscription share.

The above subscription was completed on 11 July
2014 and the Company issued 82,000,000 shares of
the Company to 8 independent subscribers. The net
proceeds from the subscription were approximately
HK$57.10 million which were applied as refundable
deposit for business development in Shenzhen area
and general working capital of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

Subscription of Convertible Bonds under Refreshed
General Mandate

On 24 June 2014, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement and the supplemental subscription agreement
dated 31 July 2014 with a subscriber for the subscription
of the convertible bonds (“CB") in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$89.6 million in cash. Subject to adjustments,
upon full conversion of the CB at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.7 per share, the Company will issue 128,000,000
new shares of the Company.

The above subscription was completed on 7 August 2014
and the Company issued the CB in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$89.6 million to the subscriber. The net
proceeds from the CB subscription were approximately
HK$89.30 million which was applied for the Group's
settlement of loans, business developments, investments and
general working capital purposes. None of the CB has been
converted into shares of the Company up to the date of this
report.

Subscription of Unlisted Warrants under Specific
Mandate

On 7 July 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a subscriber for the subscription of an
aggregate of 180,000,000 non-listed warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.01 per warrant. The warrants will entitle the
holder to subscribe in cash up to an aggregate amount
of HK$126 million for the subscription shares at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.70 per subscription share, for a
period of 2 years commencing from the date of issue of the
warrants.

Based on the initial subscription price of HK$0.70 per
subscription share, a maximum of 180,000,000 subscription
shares will be allotted and issued by the Company upon full
exercise of the subscription rights.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The net proceeds from the issue of the warrants and the full
exercise of the warrants of approximately HK$1.5 million
and HK$126 million respectively will be used for the Group’s
settlement of loans, business development, investments and
general working capital purposes.

As at the date of this report, the issue of the warrants has not
yet been completed.

Grant of Share Options

On 23 July 2014, the Company granted share options (the
"Options”) to certain eligible persons including Directors,
employees and consultants of the Group to subscribe at
the exercise price of HK$0.754 per share for a total of
78,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share
capital of the Company pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 23 May 2007. Among the total
of 78,600,000 Options granted, 13,100,000 Options were
granted to the Directors and the chief executive officer of
the Company. Further details of the grant of the Options as
referred to in the announcement of the Company dated 23
July 2014.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The continuing operations of the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately HK$80.00 million (2013: HK$94.18
million), representing a decrease of 15.05% from last year.
Gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group
was approximately HK$11.10 million (2013: HK$15.84
million). The loss (net of taxation) from continuing operations
was HK$41.82 million and the gain from discontinued
operations (net of tax) was HK$142.88 million. The loss
from continuing operations including the loss on fair value
change on derivative financial assets HK$12.15 million. Profit
attributable to owners of the parent was approximately
HK$117.81 million (Loss attributable to owners of the
parent for 2013: HK$126.77 million) which was mainly due
to the disposal gain arosed from the Harbin Disposal. Profit
per share from continuing operations and discontinued
operations for the Year was HK7.73 cents (Loss per share
from continuing operations and discontinued operations for
2013: HK10.61 cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$16.71 million (2013: HK$21.93 million), representing
a decrease of 23.80% from last year and 20.89% (2013:
23.29%) of the Group’s revenue.

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$25.43
million (2013: HK$19.73 million), representing an increase of
28.89% from last year.

Finance cost was approximately HK$8.7 million (2013:
HK$4.97 million), representing an increase of 75.05% over
last year. The increase was due to the increase in the loan
interest.

ANALYSIS TO MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the sales to the top 5 customers amounted
to HK$78,460,000, representing a drop of 62.57% from
HK$209,590,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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2014 2013
—B-mE ZE-=F
% to % to
Category of products HK$'000 total sales HK$'000 total sales
HAEER Ewiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EmiEhl TET iCERN THIL A
Sales to the largest customer Ethanol 30,700 15.7 118,462 269
HEARPHHER LB
Sales to the top 5 customers Ethanol and animal feed 78,460 40.1 209,590 471
HAIRRPHHER LERBYEH

Our top 5 customers in the Year represented approximately
40.1% of our total revenue as compared to approximately
47.1% in 2013. Our largest customer accounted for
approximately 15.7% of our total revenue in the Year as
compared to approximately 26.9% in 2013. These changes
were mainly due to continuing slowdown in market
demand and sale prices and the completion of disposal of
the subsidiary of the Group. All our top 5 customers are
located in northern China and have been operating in the
ethanol industry in the region more than 3 years. Our largest
customer is a leading firm engaged in the trading of ethanol,
animal feed and food in the PRC. Other major customers are
trading of ethanol, animal feed and manufacturers of ethanol
related products, such as wine. The Group maintained
business relationship with such customers for 3 to 5 years
and offered them with credit periods for 90 days. As at the
date of this annual report, our major customers had repaid all
their debts at the agreed commercial terms. Therefore, there
was no need to provide for related doubtful debts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite that the sale of ethanol products accounted for
40.1% of the Group’s total revenue in 2014, the Directors
expected that due to the weak liquor market in the PRC, the
demand and prices for ethanol products would continue to
slow down in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group
decided that the whole ethanol business be disposed so as
to focus on other core business activities of the Group with
the realized liquidity then arising. The disposal of the ethanol
business was completed on 18 June 2014, further details of
which were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 28 February 2014 and the circular of the Company
dated 27 March 2014.

During the year, the purchases from the top 5 major suppliers
amounted to HK$115,790,000, representing a decrease of
about 65.42% from HK$334,888,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013.
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2014 2013
—E-RF —T-=%
% to total % to total
Category of products HK$'000 purchase HK$'000 purchase
fHAREE HRRER
EmEhl TR MBS FET MBS
Purchase from largest supplier Corn 72,482 41.3 122,716 24.7
MEA M EE S REE K
Sales to top 5 suppliers Corn, coal and Liquor 115,790 66.1 334,888 67.2
MOAHERRES TR ERRER

Our top 5 suppliers in the Year represented approximately
66.1% of our total purchases as compared to approximately
67.2% in 2013. Our largest supplier accounted for
approximately 41.3% of our total purchases in the Year as
compared to approximately 24.7% in 2013. The Group had
always been searching for suppliers with competitive terms.
During the Year, the Group for sake of better terms changed
to another major supplier which turned up to become the
largest supplier in 2014. 3 out of our top 5 suppliers are
located in northern China and are suppliers of food, such
as corns; the remaining 2 suppliers are suppliers of liquor
products. Our largest supplier is the leading supplier of
food in PRC. Other major suppliers are related to supply
and trading of food and coal in PRC. The Group maintained
business relationship with such suppliers for 2 to 6 years and
the Group was offered with credit periods ranging from 1 to
60 days.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

As reported above, the Group had completed the disposal
of its ethanol business in June 2014, and so the Group's
purchases from these major suppliers were up to that time
only.

Discontinued Operations

Since the Group has signed the sales and purchase
agreements with independent third parties for the Harbin
Disposal and the BAPP Disposal on 24 February 2014 and
26 March 2014 respectively, the Group reclassified the entire
ethanol business segment of the Group from subsidiaries
to assets held for sale in 2013 and 2014. The net liabilities
directly associated with the BAPP Disposal were classified as
held for sale and were amounted to approximately HK$17.19
million in 2014. The gain on disposal from Harbin Disposal
was approximately HK$204.55 million was stated in this
report. It is estimated that the Group will realize the gain
from the BAPP Disposal during the period ending 30 June
2015.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Throughout the Year, the issued share capital of the Company
increased 431,532,479 shares to 1,626,694,876 shares due
to allotment and issue of subscription shares and exercise of
share options by employees and consultants of the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net asset to owners
of the parent of approximately HK$293.79 million (2013: net
liability to owners of the parent of approximately HK$41.19
million). Net current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2014 amounted to approximately HK$287.58 million (2013:
net current liabilities of HK$86.61 million). The current ratio
(calculated as current assets to current liabilities) for the Year
was 3.50 (2013: 0.86).

The Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents as at
31 December 2014 amounted to approximately HK$79.15
million (2013: HK$25.49 million), which were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Harbin China
Distillery Company Limited held cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$2.83 million for the year ended 31
December 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$72.35 million (2013:
HK$136.42 million). The Group's borrowings included bank
loans of approximately HK$61.22 million (2013: HK$67.41
million). Amounts due to related parties of approximately
HK$11.14 million (2013; HK$69.00 million). All of the
Group's borrowings were denominated in Renminbi with the
rest in Hong Kong dollars. The bank loans, other borrowings
and amounts due to related parties of approximately
HK$11.14 million (2013: HK$69.00 million) are charged at
fixed interest rates. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2014, calculated as net debt divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent plus net debt, was
26.2% (2013: 139.2%).

These ratios were at reasonably adequate levels as at 31
December 2014. Having considered the Group’s current
unpledged cash and cash equivalents, bank and other
borrowings, banking facilities, the management believes
that the Group’s financial resources are sufficient for its
day-to-day operations. The Group did not use financial
instruments for financial hedging purposes during the Year.
The Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact the Group's results
and net asset value as the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
treasury policy is to manage its foreign currency exposure
only when its potential financial impact is material to the
Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilize hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's property,
plant and equipment, leasehold land and bank deposits with
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$96.08 million
were pledged to banks to secure the Group's bank loans and
bills payable. As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not
pledge any assets to secure bank loans and bills payable and
had no material contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 142
(2013: 504) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC with total
staff costs amounted to approximately HK$21.34 million
(2013: HK$36.79 million). Remuneration of employees is
offered at competitive standards, generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual qualifications.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and the
purpose of which is to provide incentives to participants for
their contribution to the Group, and to enable the Group to
recruit and retain quality employees to serve the Group on a
long-term basis.

PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 2 March 2015, the Company proposed to change the
English name of the Company from “Sino Distillery Group
Limited” to “China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings
Limited” and the Chinese name of the Company from "
FEAEEEERAGF" to "PRILKREXEEZERER
7x|]". The proposed change of company name is subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the extraordinary general
meeting to be held on 10 April 2015 and the approval of the
Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands. The Board
considered that the proposed change of company name
is to be in line with the Company’s corporate strategy of
expanding its business and promoting further development
of the Company and the proposed change of company name
will not affect any of the rights of the Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
that shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) during the
year ended 31 December 2014 as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except where otherwise
stated.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to directors
and employees; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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The executive directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive directors provide the Group with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their participation in Board
meetings bring independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group's strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process, to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. The independent non-
executive directors ensure that the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered
in an objective manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as directors in the best interest of the
Company and that the current Board size is adequate for its
present operations.

At 31 December 2014, the Board comprised four executive
directors, namely, Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman), Mr. Li
Jianging (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Qu Shuncai and
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng; one non-executive director, namely,
Mr. Huang Qingxi; and three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Li Xiaofeng and Mr. Ho
Man Fai. Biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 36 to 38 of this Annual Report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all
time met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive directors also
represented at least one-third of the members of the Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-
executive directors and considers them to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive directors in particular, Dr. Loke Yu, who has
served the Board for more than nine years. Dr. Loke Yu
does not have any management role in the Company and
its subsidiaries since his appointment. He has expressed his
willingness clearly to exercise independent judgement and
has been giving objective views to the Company. There is no
evidence that length of tenure is having any unfavourable
influence on his independence. The Board is satisfied that,
as well proven by the valuable independent judgement
and advice given by Dr. Loke Yu over the years, Dr. Loke
Yu has the required character, integrity, independence
and experience to perform the role of an independent
non-executive director. The Board is not aware of any
circumstances that might influence Dr. Loke Yu in exercising
his independent judgement and therefore believes he is still
independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other
except as disclosed in “Directors’ and Senior Management's
Biographies” of this Annual Report.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of directors’ liability.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

During the period from 1 January 2014 to 28 March 2014,
Mr. Jiang lJianjun was the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company (the Company regards the role of
its Managing Director to be same as that of chief executive
under the CG Code).

On 28 March 2014, Mr. Jiang Jianjun resigned as the
Managing Director. Following his resignation as the
Managing Director, Mr. Jiang Jianjun remains as the Chairman
and an Executive Director.

On 28 March 2014, Mr. Li Jianging was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He was further
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 18
April 2014. Accordingly, the Company has complied with
the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as from 28 March
2014.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid in the articles of association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are available on the website
of the Company.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company's articles of
association, one-third of the directors, including the non-
executive directors, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting. The non-executive director
and independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
period of three years.

Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association provides
that directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election by the shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of the
Company's affairs. The most up-to-date terms of reference
of these committees are available on the website of the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has had an Audit Committee since 2001. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's
financial statements, overseeing the Group's financial
reporting and internal control procedures, and making
recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

At 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Li
Xiaofeng and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Dr. Loke Yu is the chairman of
the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there were two
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) review with
external auditor the audit plan, the external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance; (ii)
discuss auditing and financial reporting matters including
the review of the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the unaudited financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2014 with
recommendations to the Board for approval; (iii) review
and make recommendations to the Board the auditor’s re-
appointment and remuneration; and (iv) review the Group’s
internal control system.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy. No individual director is
involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model
under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
shall be held at least once a year.

At 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive director, Mr. Jiang Jianjun, and two
independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Ho
Man Fai. Dr. Loke Yu is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there were four
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the directors and senior management; (ii)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of the newly appointed directors;
(i) review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the resigning directors for their tenure of
office in 2014; and (iv) review and make recommendations to
the Board on grant of share options.

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2014 are disclosed in notes 8 and 9 to the
financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
making recommendations to the Board on
nominations, appointment of directors and Board succession.
The Board adopted a board diversity policy which aims to
set out the approach to achieving diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises the benefits of diversity of Board
members. The Nomination Committee selects candidates
for directorship with reference to a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to the candidate’s
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee considered that the
Board has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and
human resources management, for the Company’s business,
while gender diversity is not directly relevant to the quality of
the Board. Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be
held at least once a year.

directors,

At 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. lJiang Jianjun,
and two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Loke Yu
and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Mr. Jiang Jianjun is the chairman of the
committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there were three
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) nominate
the retiring directors for re-election at the annual general
meeting held on 26 June 2014; (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors with reference to the
requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) nominate three
new directors for appointment to the Board.

The directors’ attendance at the meetings held is set out in
the section below.
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MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, there were sixteen Board
meetings held by the directors, four of which were regular
Board meetings to (i) review and discuss the Group's
development strategies, investment projects and the
operational and financial performance of the Group, and (i)
approve the annual report for 2013 and the interim report for
2014. The other twelve Board meetings were held to consider
certain ad hoc matters. Under the code provision A.1.3 of
the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should be given of
a regular board meeting to give all directors an opportunity
to attend. During the year, certain regular Board meetings
were convened with less than 14 days’ notice to enable the
Board members to react timely and make expeditious decision
making in respect of transactions which were of significance
to the Group’s business. As a result, the aforesaid regular
Board meetings were held with a shorter notice period than
required with the consent of all the directors for that time
being. The Board will do its best endeavours to meet the
requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in
future. In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman of the
Board met with the non-executive directors (including the
independent non-executive directors) without the presence of
the executive directors.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
minutes of each meeting with appropriate details, which
are available to all directors. Draft minutes is circulated to all
directors for comment and approval after each meeting.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain
independent professional advisors if necessary. They also have
unrestricted access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or director arise, the matter is discussed in an
actual meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, all follow the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.

Details of directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
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committees meetings and general meetings held during the  #{T2EEZC R BEFLECLHLBEK
year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows: BESRHEBRNOT:
Attended/Eligible to attend
ERERY AERERERY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Name of director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
HEpg ESg8E ENRZE98E FMWZES9E RAZE9g3 BRRAE
Executive Directors HITEE
M. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman) @ IREEE(FE) 16/16 - 4/4 33 4/4
Mr. Li Jianging FRERE

(Chief Executive Officer) ® (1TEA#E3) 0 10/10 - - - 17
Mr. Qu Shuncai BIEA %4 13/16 - - - 0/4
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng © LR e 910 - - - 072
Mr. Song Shaohua © ROEFEO 719 - - - 113
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Huang Qingxi HEELE 12/16 - - - 1/4
Independent Non-executive Directors %17 381772 &
Dr. Loke Yu BEEMEL 15/16 22 414 33 1/4
Mr. Li Xiaofeng BEkrE 11/16 212 - - 0/4
Mr. Ho Man Fai © SR e 6/6 il il 0/0 1”1
Mr. Zhang Yonggen © RoKIRFE LD 5/9 1 12 12 013

- The director is not a committee member 3% & £l FEZ E &%
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Notes:

(a) Mr. Jiang Jianjun resigned as the Managing Director of the
Company with effect from 28 March 2014.

(b) Mr. Li Jianging was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 28 March 2014 and an
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 18 April
2014.

(0 Mr. Jiang Jiancheng was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company with effect from 18 April 2014.

(d) Mr. Song Shaohua resigned as an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 13 June 2014.

(e) Mr. Ho Man Fai was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 13 June
2014.

f) Mr. Zhang Yonggen resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 13 June
2014,

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors,
as equal board members, should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Certain directors were unable to attend the
general meetings, as shown in the last column of the above
table, due to their other business engagements.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director is provided with an induction
on the first occasion of his appointment so as to ensure
he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he is fully aware of his
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record in order to assist the directors to record the training
they have undertaken and they are asked to provide a
training record to the Company.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the directors received for the year ended 31
December 2014 is summarized as follows:
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BBEARARTFZEE EEREBE_T—MO
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T

Attending expert

briefings/seminars/ Reading
conferences relevant materials relevant
to the business to the business
Name of director or directors’ duties or directors’ duties
SHEHEREKD
BEEREC
EXENE HMEEEELD
EENA EHE EE EEREZER
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRELA v
Mr. Li Jianging © FRELRE v
Mr. Qu Shuncai JE B 5 A v
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng ® L 2P Pt A v
Mr. Song Shaohua © RAOEFFO
Non-executive Director FHITESE
Mr. Huang Qingxi mEEHELE v
Independent Non-executive BUIFHITEFE
Directors
Dr. Loke Yu FEEMIELT v/ v
Mr. Li Xiaofeng R4 v
Mr. Ho Man Fai @ A B @ v
Mr. Zhang Yonggen © SROKAR P A ©
Notes: P EE

(a

Mr. Li Jianging was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 28 March 2014 and an
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 18 April
2014.

Mr. Jiang Jiancheng was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company with effect from 18 April 2014.

Mr. Song Shaohua resigned as an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 13 June 2014.

Mr. Ho Man Fai was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 13 June
2014.

Mr. Zhang Yonggen resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 13 June
2014.

(@) FRIBAREE - T-NE=A -+ /\ALHE
ZERRRRITHRAE TE _F—WFMN
A+ NHREZERERARNITES -

() TERELEE-_FT-NFNA+N\BREEZ
ER/RERAMITES -

ROBEEEZT—MFRAT=ARRE
ARARTEE

d ([AXBEELEE-_FT-NFAA+=BREZ
ERARPBILIFRNITES-

(e) RABEEB T —WFERA+=HIREHE
RRBIEIIFRITES-

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEER A 7 31

Annual Report 2014 iy



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REARE

Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should
provide a record of the training they received to the issuer.
Mr. Song Shaohua and Mr. Zhang Yonggen, both being
former directors, had not provided a record of the training to
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
of the Listing Rules. Specified employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company are also subject to the compliance with
the Code. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the
Company confirms that the directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. It
is also responsible for preparing accounts that give a true
and fair view of the Group’s financial position on a going-
concern basis and other price-sensitive announcements
and financial disclosures. Management provides the Board
with the relevant information it needs to discharge these
responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to these

financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 54 and 55 of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration
paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, Cheng & Cheng
Limited, including the followings:

Services rendered

A\ AUz g
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REE S
RNEBEE-_Z-—NME+-_A=+—HIEFE B
R FAR RIS S ST E5TE
RARZMEBREATEE:

Fee paid/payable

iR AR 75 eN ENER

HK$

BT
Audit services ZE R 750,000
Non-audit services* FEAZ BRAR % * 432,000
Total et 1,182,000
* Such services included interim review and other reporting * ZEREKAIETHENEEAEERTZEH

services related to transactions of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests. The Board conducts regular
reviews of the Group’s internal control system. The Board
assesses the effectiveness of internal controls by considering
reviews performed by the Audit Committee, management
and both internal and external auditors. The Board believes
that the present internal control system is adequate and
effective.

The internal audit department follows a risk-and-control
based approach. The department performs regular financial
and operational reviews of the Group and its subsidiaries, as
well as other reviews as required. Summaries of major audit
findings and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the
Audit Committee. The internal audit department monitors
the follow-up actions agreed upon in response to the Audit
Committee’s recommendations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric, who is engaged and appointed by the Company
from an external secretarial services provider. The primary
contact person with the Company Secretary of the Company
is Mr. Chai Chung Wai, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

H L At B R AR 75 o

R B 4

EXCAARETHBRIRBMNARE
7 DREARENEEARBEROAN @ -EF
SEMHAEBAMEZEREZETRT -EF
S2EMBEREZES BEENRABMINLEZ
SRRD A2 B T S NP B R ) B R A AT A
EZgRERANAEEERENMES -

M ERAZ B ES P B A A R B S A2 B AN T3 0% ©
ZEPPIE B AN B R EMB AR 2 BB
EBETER ARERERRPTHMER -
ENBEZATERLIESHIE (NE) RS
mEZZBESRMN ABEBHBIEEREX
ZESFLZEBEZAMME L RETH 28
& o

YNETE =

RABZRARMETRER LA HHAAAA
BN WERBHENZREREZF -EHARQA
ZRRMEZ F B AR AN BANA R I ISR B TS
BELAE-NEBE-—E—NE+-—A=+—¢
EFE ARBZARWEDET EHMRAE
329RIB T 2 BAEEFIIHEE -

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEER A 7 33

Annual Report 2014 iy



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REARE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s articles of
association, any two or more shareholders or any one
shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request
at the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1001E, 10/F, East Ocean
Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, or the registered office of the Company at PO. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands for the attention of the Board or Company Secretary
to convene an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").

The Company will verify the request with the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules
and the Company'’s articles of association. In the event that
the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address @ Unit T001E, 10/F, East Ocean Centre,
98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Fax : (852) 2880 5398
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2014.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders and
the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to exchange views directly with the Board. The Company
regards the annual general meeting as an important event
and all directors, senior management and external auditor
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to address shareholders’ queries. All the
shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of 20
clear business days' notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company
supports the CG Code's principle to encourage shareholders’
participation. The Company has also complied with the
requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing
Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed
at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees can be downloaded from the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Company’s management to reflect current regulatory,
community and investor requirements. In particular, the
policy will be updated in response to the changes in internal
structure, legislative, regulatory and market developments.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EEREREEERRE

The directors and senior management of the Company as at
the date of this report are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Mr. JIANG lJianjun, aged 45, was appointed as executive
director of the Company in March 2013, and as the chairman
and the managing director of the Company in May 2013.
He resigned as the managing director of the Company in
March 2014. Mr. Jiang is a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He has been engaged in property investment
and management since 1995. He also has experience in
distribution of wine and liquor. Mr. Jiang is concurrently a
committee member of Shenzhen Baoan District of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president
of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber of Commerce and
Shenzhen Baoan Shajing Chamber of Commerce. He is the
brother of Mr. Jiang Jiancheng, an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. LI Jianging, aged 52, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in March 2014 and as
executive director of the Company in April 2014. He is
the president of Dongguan ZhiRui Industrial Investment
Co., Ltd. Mr. Li has over 20 years of experience in the
operation and management of financial institutions and
banks. He graduated from Beijing School of Economics and
Management majoring in Economy Administration Specialty,
and also holds a Degree of Finance from Southwestern
University of Finance And Economics and an Executive Master
of Business Administration from Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. QU Shuncai, aged 52, was appointed as executive
director of the Company in June 2012. He is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qu was the director
of the Group’s development division. He has been engaged
in trading of wine and liquor, nanotechnology development,
and production and sale of automotive fine chemicals. Mr. Qu
holds a Bachelor of Education degree from Qigihar University.

36 sino Distillery Group Limited FE B ELEEER 2 7

Ynual Report 2014 £ 3§

RAREBE ARANESE R REEEN
T
B5E

IRERE 45 R_ZE—=F=AREE
REARFTHITESF IR _T—=FHAEZ
ERARREENEFBLEE - BN _F—1
FoABREARRESALE TRERAR
AETHEARZEE A NALAFES K
—EREVNERENEE - RN EREBED
WL RERERERNTERREBEE
AmErREFNSISRMAIITERRY
FEgaleRk RAXARATEST IEXSE
HEZ M e

FRABFRE 2 N-_T—NE=-AEZE
RARNBITHRAHE MR T NFNAEERE
BARRATEZ RWRRETEREXRKRE
BERARZEFR -FRENSBEE LR
ZEBENEE N EERB20FER - REEN
IEREHEEE B TELBEEEEE T
ERMUHSREeRBLEPIUABRSHER
ABTHERELSM -

BIEAEE 2B RZE——_FNAEST
BRRABMITES -FAARAATHEARF
LEB - BEEZARASBEREHNRE K
BREOBRES MAREBERIERAL
BREEMBEENTIEF - BEAEREEERR
REYEEBE LB



DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Mr. JIANG Jiancheng, aged 43, was appointed as executive
director of the Company in April 2014. He is the general
manager of Shenzhen Jiangshi Longhui Trading Limited. He
has been engaged in real estate leasing industry since 1993
and has extensive experience in marketing and management.
Mr. Jiang graduated from Department of Industrial Control
And Automation of Hefei University of Technology. Mr. Jiang
was previously a consultant of the Company from September
2010 to March 2014. He is the brother of Mr. Jiang Jianjun,
the chairman and an executive director of the Company.

Dr. LOKE Yu alias LOKE Hoi Lam, aged 65, was appointed
as independent non-executive director of the Company
in June 2005. Dr. Loke has over 39 years of experience in
accounting and auditing for private and public companies,
financial consultancy and corporate management. He holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration
degree from University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also an Associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He is the company secretary of Minth Group Limited and
serves as an independent non-executive director of V1
Group Limited (formerly known as VODone Limited), Matrix
Holdings Limited, China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited,
Winfair Investment Company Limited, SCUD Group Limited,
Zhong An Real Estate Limited, Chiho-Tiande Group Limited,
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited, China Household
Holdings Limited, Wing Tai Investment Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Wing Lee Holdings Limited) and Tianhe
Chemicals Group Limited, companies currently listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

EEREREEERRE

IREEE B R_T-HUFHAEZE
BARRATEZ - WRARYTIREERNH
BRABZEZE - RE—NAN=ZFUR—F
WEEHEHEETE UYXNMSHERENERT
EREBEERR IAEEEZNESEIEARE
TEEPER - TIRERMNNR-_Z—FFNA
E-_T-NFEZARARAZER - BAER
AEERNTERIEELEZMS-

EEMEL 65 R -_ZTTERFNAELT
BARNBVBMYIERTES - EFELRAARR
BAFMBH B LE UBERREEE
B EERB3IFLR KB B RADRX
ABTHEEBETSMAERNAETHER
BB -KARKEREBNFTSETAIA
g BEEGHMAGRBEBEETEGNERY
B-BMABEFANWELAENEE -RAK
EXEERARNARIME - W% FBRNE
RETERETHIAR] - BFEV1 Group Limited 5
—RIAEE AR AR (BIHEVODone Limiteds
—RIEEEBRAR) - ENREBERAGT
FEVECEREERAR - KBEEBRA
A MREREEERRF - RELEEBRAR
BaAMEBBRAT KEBRRIERERA
A PEXEERERAR  KEREERE
BRAF (AIEXAIERERAR) RRXE(T
EEERARHEBIIERTES-

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEER A 7 37

Annual Report 2014 iy
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EERGREEERRE

Mr. LI Xiaofeng, aged 37, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company in December 2012.
He is a supervisor of the credit department of Shenzhen Rural
Commercial Bank Shajing branch. Mr. Li has been engaged in
financial services industry since 1998. Mr. Li graduated from
Department of Finance of Jinan University.

Mr. HO Man Fai, aged 50, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company in June 2014. He
is the chairman of California Restaurant and has extensive
experience in catering and management. Mr. Ho is a
director of New Territories General Chamber of Commerce,
a director of Hong Kong Food Science and Technology
Association Limited, a director of Yuen Long Merchants
Education Promotion Limited, a school manager of Yuen
Long Merchants Association Primary School and general
affairs officer of Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation
Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAI Chung Wai, aged 48, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. He joined the Group in May 2013. Mr. Chai
obtained his master degree of Accounting in 2004 and of
Business Administration in 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. Chai has extensive experience of over 20 years in the
accounting and financial field in various listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group'’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 56 to
167.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 168. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 32 and 33
to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Details of the convertible bonds are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$189.4 million,
representing the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$920.4 million less the accumulated losses
as at 31 December 2014 of approximately HK$731.0 million.
Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (as amended) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, sales attributable
to the largest customer of the Group amounted to
approximately 15.7% of the total sales for the year and the
five largest customers of the Group accounted for 40.1% of
the Group's total sales for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, purchases
attributable to the largest supplier of the Group amounted to
approximately 41.3% of the total purchases for the year and
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 66.1%
of the Group's total purchases for the year.

ARAEEFRFRENTAMETHEAR (BE
EMABEEARB D EITRAS%IA M) (]
BRBMERAEBRAREP MMEERTHEB T

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued

share capital) had any interest in the Group's five largest — fal#E%s

customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS =)

The directors of the Company during the year were: REEHARRESNT:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Jiang Jianjun TREERSE

Mr. Li Jianging (appointed on 18 April 2014) FRIFEAE (R=ZF—MFE/LNA+/TH
BZT)

Mr. Qu Shuncai RN e 4

Mr. Jiang Jinacheng (appointed on 18 April 2014) TR St & (R=ZF—MFE/LNA+/TH
BZT)

Mr. Song Shaohua (resigned on 13 June 2014) RAOEL A (R=ZFE—WWENA+=H
BHIE)

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Huang Qingxi mEBLA

Independent Non-executive Directors ﬁﬁ'ﬁiiﬂﬁ§$

Dr. Loke Yu B MIE L

Mr. Li Xiaofeng BRIz I S A

Mr. Ho Man Fai (appointed on 13 June 2014) RSB A (RZFE—WWENA+=H
BEZT)

Mr. Zhang Yonggen (resigned on 13 June 2014) SRR ST A (R=ZF—ENAT=H
BFIE)

BEFER R-_T—AF=A-++tH" %
BEEAEBREARRFNATESE A -F—

FZAZt+TERHEER ﬂakﬁAﬁiZ%éEZ%
RARBEMITEE B _T—AFMA+—H

Subsequent to the reporting year, on 27 March 2015, Mr.
Huang Qingxi resigned as non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 27 March 2015 and Ms. Ho Wing
Yan was appointed as non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 11 April 2015.
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In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Jiang Jianjun, Mr. Qu Shuncai and Dr.
Loke Yu will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors are appointed for a period of three years.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. Ho Wing Yan will retire and being eligible,
will offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 36 to 38 of this Annual
Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder of any
of its subsidiaries during the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EENROREEROVEZR AR
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions RN ZE—UE+—_A=+—H KFEERAEARQ

of the directors in the shares and underlying shares of the TS ERESEE (T35 B BA NEEEMEXY
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning HOVRE D AR (D R EA LN B ﬁ&ﬁ,ﬁ
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the &0 ([BE5REREED ) E352{EREARR
“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by BYRIEZERLM jz@%ﬁim%éﬁ/\ﬁ%
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as WTEAR S ZEESTR| ([2E<FR ) B
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange SARANTIRBTAZERZRRBENT
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: REATEBERZHAE:

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BEROHE SOREENLE

Percentage of

Directly Through the Company'’s
beneficially Through controlled issued share
Name of director owned spouse corporation Total capital
YN
o) ERTREAZ
EEpE ERERER EBRE ZEHEE @t BAL
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRELE 106,652,000 2,920,000 173,229,522® 282,801,522 17.38
Mr. Huang Qingxi EEELL 13,334,000 - - 13,334,000 0.82
Mr. Li Jianging FRIELE 7,470,000 - - 7,470,000 0.46
Mr. Qu Shuncai JEIEA %4 3,680,000 - - 3,680,000 0.23
Mr. Ho Man Fai ]S o A 500,000 - - 500,000 0.03
131,636,000 2,920,000 173,229,522 307,785,522 18.92

Notes: P &E

(a) These 2,920,000 shares were held by Ms. Li Zhuoxun, the (a) £%2,920,000% f& /) BT R E e A AL B R

spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun. Bt HE-

(b) These 173,229,522 shares were held by King Wei Group (b) £2173,229,5220 IR Mm@ (P E)
(China) Investment Development Limited (“King Wei") BEBRRERAER AT ([#&4] )gﬁggﬁﬁﬁ;’%
as to 126,629,522 shares and China Silver Investments HERBARAT* ([ER])DREE
Development Limited (“China Silver”) as to 46,600,000 126,629,522 % % 46,600,0000% ° FAA &4 &
shares. As King Wei and China Silver were wholly-owned EEETIESELAREES At BiEE
by Mr. Jiang Jianjun, Mr. Jiang Jianjun was deemed to be ENHEIED  TEE LR LR ED BN
interested in the 126,629,522 shares held by King Wei and G H9126,629,522 % 5 R ERIZ AR
the 46,600,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by 46,600,0000% J& {5 R E A HEZ o

virtue of the SFO.
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Long positions in share options of the Company:

Name of director

REQRRBREZHR:

Number of
options directly
beneficially owned

EREREAZ

EEpg BREHE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRE R E 100,000
Mr. Li Jianging FRIFEE 10,000,000
Mr. Qu Shuncai JEIEA & 2,750,000
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng LK 500,000
Mr. Huang Qingxi mEELE 500,000
Dr. Loke Yu B g MIE T 600,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng ezl ot 500,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai A SCHB S A 500,000
15,450,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the directors had registered an interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2014, the following interests of 5% or more
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE

FTERREEMATRRGREEKRS
7 HE 2

R-E—NE+-A=+—H WUTHRARQF
B B AR BB IR D 5% Bk LA I RE25 B R ER A AR
NAEIRIE B FH R A E G0 F336f%kim 7 B 7

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: HBEEMA:
Long positions: Ha:
Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares or the Company’s
Capacity and underlying issued share
Name nature of interest shares held capital
FEEEBERDS HARQATERT
e B REEME HERGDEE BAZB 5L
Li Zhuoxun Beneficial owner 2,920,000 0.18
L A=Rs)) E=EAA
Interest of spouse 279,981,522@ 17.21
Ao B
Beidahuang (HK) International Beneficial owner 180,000,000® 11.07
Trade Co., Limited
LR (BEB)BEBEZERAR Em#EEA
EREIEBRIATHEEE Interest of controlled corporation 180,000,000© 11.07
BRETAT
XIEHEEER
BRI ATEBREFLA NG Interest of controlled corporation 180,000,000© 11.07
PR H)EE s
Li Xianggen Beneficial owner 1,332,000 0.08
IR Em#EA A
Interest of controlled corporations 173,314,000 10.65
SRS A EE R
Chen Hua Interest of controlled corporations 173,314,000 10.65
PR 2= A E s
Able Turbo Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 100,585,737 6.18
Em#EA A
Interest of controlled corporation 72,728,263® 4.47

REEE RS
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Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares or the Company’s
Capacity and underlying issued share
Name nature of interest shares held capital
BFEEEBERD HARQATERT
wa BB S REEME R MEE BARZBE DL
Li Jiehong Beneficial owner 2,126,000 0.13
ERB E=EAA
Interest of controlled corporation 137,811,220% 8.47
SIS EEER
Sino Insight Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 137,811,220 8.47
ERERAER AR ER#EAA
King Wei Group (China) Investment  Beneficial owner 126,629,522 7.78
Development Limited
il (PR REER E=EAA
BRAA
Baibao Investments Limited Beneficial owner 112,000,000@ 6.89
BEREBRAR E=EAA
Chen Guobin Interest of controlled corporation 112,000,000 6.89
FeR [ %, ZEEHEEER
Notes: B 5

(a

These 279,981,522 shares were held by Mr. Jiang lJianjun
("Mr. Jiang"”), the spouse of Ms. Li Zhuoxun, as to
106,652,000 shares and 100,000 share options, King Wei
Group (China) Investment Development Limited (“King Wei")
as to 126,629,522 shares and China Silver Investments
Development Limited (“China Silver”) as to 46,600,000
shares. As King Wei and China Silver were wholly-owned
by Mr. Jiang, Mr. Jiang was deemed to be interested in the
126,629,522 shares held by King Wei and the 46,600,000
shares held by China Silver respectively by virtue of the SFO.
Accordingly, Ms. Li Zhuoxun was deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Mr. Jiang, King Wei and China Silver by
virtue of SFO.
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§2279,981,522 IR th VT EZ T £ 4 ([VI 5%
1 RRLEE X THIRLE) #EE 106,652,000
BB 13 2 100,0001) B AE 4 - R 48 £
(FENEEBERABRAR ([&E]HE
126,629,522 M REREBEILEHREHR
MR A A)* ([ZE4R | ) ¥ 5 46,600,0000% A% 17 ©

RIEBFSFRBAEGRY IREFEEHRRAED
B ERIE B 19126,629,522 % i (n & 2SR 15
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()

These 180,000,000 underlying shares shall be potentially
issued and allotted to Beidahuang (HK) International
Trade Co., Limited pursuant to the Warrents subscribed by
Beidahuang (HK) International Trade Co., Limited under the
Subscription Agreement dated 7 July 2014 (as supplemented
by the supplemental agreements dated 24 November 2014
and 14 January 2015), details of which are referred to in
the announcements of the Company dated 11 July 2014,
24 November 2014, 14 January 2015 and circular of the
Company dated 28 January 2015.

These 180,000,000 underlying shares refer to the same
parcel of underlying shares in note (b) above. Beidahuang
(HK) International Trade Co., Limited was wholly-owned by
ERIBRBLEATHEEBBEREMTAF which in turn
was wholly-owned by BT AR EREHBE QG
Accordlngly, each of ZEIERBI ANEBELEBBEREMT

AF] and BEETIEARTERZEEBEE QTR was deemed to
be interested in the 180,000,000 underlying shares held by
Beidahuang (HK) International Trade Co., Limited by virtue of
the SFO.

These 173,314,000 shares were held by Able Turbo
Enterprises Limited (“Able Turbo”) as to 100,585,737 shares
and China Food and Beverage Group Limited (“China Food”)
as to 72,728,263 shares. As China Food was 100% owned
by Able Turbo, Able Turbo was deemed to be interested in
the 72,728,263 shares held by China Food by virtue of the
SFO. As Able Turbo was 60.31% owned by Mr. Chen Hua
and 39.69% owned by Mr. Li Xianggen, each of Mr. Chen
Hua and Mr. Li Xianggen was deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Able Turbo and China Food by virtue of SFO.

These 72,728,263 shares were held by China Food, which
was wholly-owned by Able Turbo. Accordingly, Able Turbo
was deemed to be interested in the 72,728,263 shares held
by China Food by virtue of the SFO.

These 137,811,220 shares were held by Sino Insight
Holdings Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. Li
Jiehong. Accordingly, Mr. Li Jiehong was deemed to be
interested in the 137,811,220 shares held by Sino Insight
Holdings Limited by virtue of the SFO.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESERE

BRI AT (BA) BERESBERARIEZRA
MAEZT—NF+tA+tBEMNRERE (KA
BHAE—Z—NF+—A-F+WmWAEKR-_F—F
F—ATHANMEEREMET) TREN
ZRXHERE - 52180,000,0000% #8 78 AL 1D 15 7E 7E
BOEREETIERR (BEBEREESER
AR (FBWMARRBHA-T—NF+LA
+—B - ZF—mNF+—-A=Z+mA ==
—hAF—At+HmEBEMNAHRESRAE-S—
F—RA =+ /\BHBHFTIL) ©

£2180,000,0000% 48 B8 I% 17 #8 £ SCHT 52 (b) A
AE—HEAR B o L KT (B8 IR E 5
ERARABEERIZBILATEEEB AR
EXRREEHER ﬁﬁf‘E/Irj%ibm.b
BEEARETARBAREETIIERNTESE
ERNF2ERE - EHiL REF %&Hﬂﬁ
wu ERIRBLEANHESEBREM
Téﬁiﬁé,ﬁtﬂtﬁﬂ%ﬁ%@ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂmﬁ
ﬁa'ﬂsooooooomaf‘%ﬂxfﬁEtﬂ%mféé/‘w

#%173,314,000/ B {7 B Able Turbo
Enterprises Limited ([Able Turbo ])#H
100,585,737f% & China Food and Beverage
Group Limited ([China Food])# &
72,728,263% < A China FoodFa Able Turbo
TERE WIREES RS BKO - Able
Turbo#18 A H China Food5 A £972,728,263
[i& % 1 7R 7 B 4 25 o B3 72X Able Turborh FRZE
FTEWEBE031%EERATRREEES
39.69% 1 a - MR R FE FH R HAE 150 - BREE
P RZFRIR L A E B AR B Able Turbo
K China Foodfs BRI M AP HEB o

§272,728,2630 I {7 A China Food# A& * M
China Food/l Able Turboz & #E A ° A It
RIEFE S K B E 1505] > Able Turbo#f 18 AR
China Food¥s 78 172,728,263 8% {7 B
MRS

$2137,811,22008 B0 RERITR AR A &)
B ZARBEENBLEERERB -EL 1R
BEHFRBERN TRBEERRABRE
R BRARIFERI137,811,2200% 8% (7
AR
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(9) These 112,000,000 underlying shares shall be potentially
issued and allotted to Baibao Investments Limited pursuant
to the Convertible Bonds subscribed by Baibao Investments
Limited under the CB Subscription Agreement dated 24 June
2014, details of which are referred to in the announcement
of the Company dated 24 June 2014.

(h) These 112,000,000 underlying shares refer to the same
parcel of underlying shares in note (g) above. Baibao
Investments Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Guobin.
Accordingly, Mr. Chen Guobin was deemed to be interested
in the 112,000,000 underlying shares held by Baibao
Investments Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to, and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the Group.
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options outstanding during the year:

(9 BEAEREARARILRBAHA-ZT—N
FRNAZTHANARRESRERZRE
R R R% & % » 5%112,000,0004% #8 B8 I 19 15
BEBTRREETFABREGRAR (FE
WAANRIHEA-Z—NEXA-+NER
AT ) o

() 7%112,000,0000% #8 B A% 17 15 & TR 5 (g)P
A —HARRG BEREERA A SR
BUREEZEHA - AUt BRIBEEFRPE K
Bl BREDHA ERBE SR ABEREBRAA
#5H #9112,000,0005 48 B8 A {0 7 #E 5 M i

R EXFEEIN R_F—MFE+-A=1+—
B SEEAAL (BARRERIN REHRE
SN EX[EFRE MR RS &
R — 8RR AR B Ay AR B R P B
BiRERE 7 MR IRDIE33616A T ERMNE

Az = 3L AN
WK E ©

fB IR &

ARRIRA—ABEETE ([ZAt8l])  B&
HREERBEESASEMERERRFES D
REARE R s R B IR - &8
—HHE BRI RRM EIBWE -

TR B B 4 PSR AT I 7 2 7 AR

Number of share options
BREYE
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of price of
1 January during during during 31 December share Exercise period share
Name or category of participant 2014 the year the year the year 2014 options®  of share options options®
RZB-mE
RZZ-m& t=A BRE BRE
SRERAAEN -A-H ERRIL ERfTE EREN =t-H RitaHo BRETES fTREE"
HKS per share
BRET
Directors £%
Mr. Jiang Jianjun - 50,000 - - 50,000 23-7-14 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
IRERE - 50,000 - - 50,000 23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 100,000 - - 100,000
48  sino Distillery Group Limited FE B ELEEER 2 7

Ynual Report 2014 £ 3§



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Number of share options

BREHA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of price of
1 January during during during 31 December share Exercise period share
Name or category of participant 2014 the year the year the year 2014 options®  of share options options®
R=2-mF
R=2-nm% t=A BRE BRE
SREL ARG -A-H ERRH ERfTR FREN =t-H RigHe BRETES TEEY
HKS per share
BRET
Mr. Li Jianging - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 B714 237-14-227-16 0.754
ZHERE - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 237-14 237-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Qu Shuncai
RIBA %4 2,250,000 B - (2,250,000 B 13-9-10 13-9-11-12-9-14 0.83
2,250,000 - - - 2,250,000 13-9-10 13-9-12 - 12-9-15 083
- 250,000 - - 250,000 23-7-14 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
- 250,000 - - 250,000 23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
4,500,000 500,000 - (2,250,000 2,750,000
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng - 250,000 - - 250,000 23-7-14 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
TRAEE - 250,000 - - 250,000 237-14 237-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 500,000 - - 500,000
Mr. Huang Qingxi - 250,000 - - 250,000 23-7-14 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
ERERE - 250,000 - - 250,000 237-14 237-15-22-7-17 0.754
- 500,000 - - 500,000
Dr. Loke Yu 50,000 - - - 50,000 26-4-10 26-4-12 - 25-4-15 0.73
EiEMEL 50,000 - - (50,000) - 1390 13-9-11-12:9-14 0.83
50,000 - - - 50,000 13-9-10 13-9-12 - 12:9-15 083
- 250,000 - - 250,000 23-7-14 23-7-14-22-7-16 0.754
- 250,000 - - 250,000 23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
150,000 500,000 - (50,000) 600,000
M. Li Xiaofeng - 250,000 - - 250,000 BT BT4-2716 0.754
RRERs - 250,000 - - 250,000 3714 237-15-227-17 0.754
- 500,000 - - 500,000
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Number of share options
EREYA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At grant of price of
1 January during during during 31 December share Exercise period share
Name or category of participant 2014 the year the year the year 2014 options®  of share options options®
R=2-m%F
R=B-m%F t=A BRE BRE
SREMEAER -B-H FREM ERfTR FREN =t+-H RLiAge BRETRE TEEY
HKS per share
BRET
Mr. Ho Man Fai - 250,000 - - 250,000 23-7-14 23-7-14 - 22-7-16 0.754
ERE - 250,000 - - 250,000 3714 237-15-227-17 0.754
- 500,000 - - 500,000
4,650,000 13,100,000 - (2,300,000 15,450,000
Ex-director A ES
Mr. Zhang Yonggen® 100,000 - - (100,000) - 4-5-11 4-5-12 -3-5-15 1.152
R 100,000 - - (100,000) - 4511 45-13-3-5-16 1152
200,000 - - (200,000 -
Other employees £ft1ES
In aggregate 4238 2,500,000 - (2,500,000 - - 127-10 12711 -11-7-14 0.62
2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - 12-7-10 12-7-12 - 11-7-15 0.62
2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - 13-9-10 13-9-11-12-9-14 0.83
2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - 13-9-10 13-9-12-12-9-15 0.83
5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 10-10-11 10-10-12 - 9-10-15 0.66
5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 10-10-11  10-10-13-9-10-16 0.66
6,500,000 - (6,500,000) - - 31-10-12 31-10-13 - 30-10-16 0.694
6,500,000 - 6,500,000 31-10-12 31-10-14-30-10-17 0.694
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 23-7-14 23-7-14 - 22-7-16 0.754
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
33,000,000 5,000,000 (26,500,000) - 11,500,000
Consultants B
In aggregate % 4,750,000 - (2,000,000) (2,750,000 13-9-10 13-9-11-12-9-14 0.83
4,750,000 - (2,000,000) - 2,750,000 13-9-10 13-9-12-12-9-15 0.83
- 30,250,000 - - 30,250,000 23-7-14 23-7-14 - 22-7-16 0.754
- 30,250,000 - - 30,250,000 23-7-14 23-7-15-22-7-17 0.754
9,500,000 60,500,000 (4,000,000) (2,750,000 63,250,000
47,350,000 78,600,000 (30,500,000) (5,250,000 90,200,000
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Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(a

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Mr. Zhang Yonggen resigned as director of the Company on
13 June 2014. According to the Scheme, the share options
granted to him may be exercised within three months of the
date of resignation.

The closing price of the Company's shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted
during the year was HK$0.75 per share.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options
were exercised during the year was HK$0.836 per share.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options

granted during the year, calculated using the binomial option

pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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FRRITEBBREY KM
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BREnRBERARRLABNEESTEY
Fia R LE -

BRRETTEE A A AR S AL BT R A AR
PRz B RN B B TR S 2

RABEENR B —MNFRAT=BFEAR
REAEF-RIEZTE WER T ZBRE
AR EHE H HIEE =8 A AT

FRAEERDLBEREMNARRRN ZWHE
#AER0.758 T 0

FREZITEBREA AR BRG 2 niEF
HU T B & EH%0.83658 7T ©
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Mz EE (ER-EARREEERLIFE)

Theoretical
value of

Number of
options granted

Grantee during the year share options
FREHE

AERA BREZAE BREERER

HK$

AT
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TRELE 100,000 21,349
Mr. Li Jianging TRERE 10,000,000 2,134,860
Mr. Qu Shuncai JEIEA & 500,000 106,743
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TR E 500,000 106,743
Mr. Huang Qingxi EEELA 500,000 106,743
Dr. Loke Yu BEEMEL 500,000 106,743
Mr. Li Xiaofeng s RS 500,000 106,743
Mr. Ho Man Fai ] 3B A 500,000 106,743
Other employees Hibg8 5,000,000 1,067,430
Consultants B 60,500,000 12,915,903
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted
method of valuing options. The significant assumptions used
in the calculation of the values of the share options are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements. The measurement
dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on
which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to
the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number
of assumptions of the expected future performance input
to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model
itself. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables
used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of
an option.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of
the directors or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of the connected transactions are disclosed in note 38
to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group’s bank loan of HK$61,216,000
(2013: HK$63,594,000) was secured by properties held by
Linxianghuayin Properties Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. ("FRMERE XN EERABRAA"), a related party of
the Group, and guaranteed by Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng, directors of the Group, Linxianghuayin Properties
Investment and Development Co., Ltd., Ningxia West Bright,
Harbin China Distillery Co., Ltd and the Company.

Besides, during the year, the Group paid HK$777,000
as rental to Guangzhou Tian Tian Friendship Co., Ltd.
("Guangzhou Tian Tian") for the warehouse services in
the PRC according to an agreement dated 1 January 2014
for a period of 6 months commencing on 1 January 2014.
The Group also paid HK$446,000 as rental to Shenzhen
Jianlai Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Jianlai”) for 2 office premises
in the PRC according to two separate agreements dated 1
January 2013 and 1 June 2014 for periods of 1 year and
2 years commencing on 1 January 2013 and 1 June 2014
respectively.
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Mr. Jiang JianJun (director and substantial shareholder of the
Company) and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng (director of the Company)
are directors of Guangzhou Tian Tian.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng are shareholders of
Jianlai.

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
three agreements were continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules.
since these continuing connected transactions were de
minimis transactions, they were exempted from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

However,

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2014, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group's business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

AUDITOR

Cheng & Cheng Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
Cheng & Cheng Limited as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Jianjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B S

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wom & F MOF OB A W A H

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of SINO DISTILLERY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
SINO DISTILLERY GROUP LIMITED (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
56 to 167, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shek Chi
Practising Certificate number P05540

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOVIE
HEREREMEEBARE

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_T-—-MFE+_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(ks FERT FHET
Continuing operations BEREXK
Revenue A 5 80,004 94,176
Cost of sales fHE AN (68,901) (78,337)
Gross profit EH 11,103 15,839
Other income and gains H A A KWz 5 4,957 2,261
Selling and distribution expenses HE R A (16,714) (21,926)
Administrative expenses TERAX (25,433) (19,734)
Loss from operation KEBE (26,087) (23,560)
Finance costs BhE KA 7 (8,700) (4,971)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates DB E A RlEF,
(E18) 5,138 (201)
Loss on fair value change on derivative $TA&REE QA FEEZH)
financial assets Z BB (12,147) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR ZEE 35(b) (40) -
Loss before tax MR EE 6 (41,836) (28,732)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FrigdiEe, () 10 16 (395)
Loss from continuing operations RERKEXBEBE (41,820) (29,127)
Discontinued operations BRI ER
Profit/(loss) from discontinued RIS R,
operations, net of tax (E51E) (BRFiE) 25 142,879 (132,862)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KEEmM, (EE) 101,059 (161,989)
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEEA
ltems that may be reclassified HigngeEsoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm 2R :
Release of exchange differences upon & K& A &) B 0]
disposal of subsidiaries bE =58 (38,124) -
Exchange differences arising on BREBIINEREEZ
translation of foreign operations bE =58 555 (67)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AEEEERKBAS
for the year (E18) B 63,490 (162,056)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RERERkEMEZEBARER

Year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_Z-—NE+_-_A=1+—HItFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Lz FET FHET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: TR (EE) -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE/ PN 11 117,810 (126,770)
Non-controlling interests FEFE A HE 2R (16,751) (35,219)
101,059 (161,989)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) THEEZEEA
attributable to: (1) a5
Owners of the parent [SY/NEIEZ PPN 11 80,530 (128,409)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = (17,040) (33,647)
63,490 (162,056)

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Basic and diluted
From continuing and discontinued
operations
From continuing operations

BREIEBRERSEA

EiEEREN, (BE)

KEFEN
RIEEEER

13

HK7.73 centsi& 4l HK(10.61) cents&l
HK(2.64) centsEfll  HK(2.24) centsifl

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEER A 7 57

Annual Report 2014 iV



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BN X
31 December 2014
—mEF+ZA=+—H
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB K& 14 15,715 18,982
Goodwill EES 16 - 468
Other intangible assets Hih M\ &EE 17 2,522 2,620
Investment in associates REENF 2 I8E 19 84,577 6,200
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 102,814 28,270
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 35,389 59,348
Trade and bills receivables JEWE FRER N EE 21 8,925 4,630
Prepayments, deposits and other FERFIE BE R
receivables E {th i Uy 5008 22 238,994 80,645
Due from related parties JE Y A3 A £ FRIE 38 15,271 15,310
Derivative financial instruments AT A 23 7,745
Pledged deposits B IRFER 24 - 7,784
Cash and cash equivalents HekRaEEY 24 79,150 25,487
385,474 193,204
Assets of disposal groups classified DEARFEHEZ
as held for sale HEARZEE 25 17,191 339,125
Total current assets MENEERE 402,665 532,329
CURRENT LIABILITIES i =R
Trade and bills payables e E 5 IE Rk B IE 26 9,211 28,401
Other payables and accruals HmENRIBEREFTER 27 9,248 14,642
Interest-bearing bank and other RITREAME EEE
borrowings 28 61,216 67,419
Due to related parties FEHREE A T FIE 38 11,136 68,996
Tax payable FET IR 5,371 6.736
96,182 186,194
Liabilities directly associated with the ~ BN IEABIEHE 2 EE
assets classified as held for sale BEEEEEE 25 18,899 432,740
Total current liabilities mEIBERTE 115,081 618,934
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBIEE (8&)FH 287,584 (86,605)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEeBRRE
31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FETT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERTBESE
LIABILITIES 390,398 (58,335)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERHIEEE 29 89 107
Convertible bonds Al R (S 5 30 92,406 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBaERTE 92,495 107
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (BE)%3E 297,903 (58,442)
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BAREEAEBGER
the parent
Issued capital B 21T A 32 162,669 119,516
Reserves {1 34(a) 131,119 (160,705)
293,788 (41,189)
Non-controlling interests FEER R 4,115 (17,253)
Total equity R B EE 297,903 (58,442)
Jiang Jianjun IRE Li Jianqing z8lE
Director BE Director EZH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

MERZEHR
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_T-—-MFE+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATREAEE
Share Share Convertible Exchange Non-
Issued premium option bond Merger fluctuation  Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total equity
TR [ 3¢ ]
BRARA ROEEE BRERE RERE AhREE e 2itER it FERER REEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR i T T AL i T T AL FER T
At 1 January 2013 119,516 718,569 22,389 - (535) 41,979 (819,798) 82,120 10,694 92,814
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (126,770) (126,770) (35219) (161,989)
Other comprehensive incomef(loss) ~ FEE 2 E
for the year: WA/ (BH) :
Exchange differences on translation NI EEBE)
of foreign operations EREE - - - - - (1,639 - (1,639) 1572 (67)
Total comprehensive loss for the year  EE2EHELES - - - - - (1,639 (126,770) (128,409) (33,647) (162,056)
Acquisttion of a subsidiary hE-HEHBAR - - - - - - - - 5,700 5,700
Equity-settled share option hELERRETH
arrangements 33 - - 5,100 - - - - 5100 - 5,100
Transfer of share option reserve upon 7 B R i 5K 3
the lapse of share options ERRERRER - - (7,539 - - - 7,539 - - -
At 31 December 2013
1956 718569 19950° - EF 4030 09 (1189 (17259 (5844
At 1 January 2014 R=F-RmE-f-B 119,516 718,569 19,950 - (535) 40,340 (939,029) (41,189) (17,253) (58,442)
Profit{loss) for the year FEET/ (BE) - - - - - - 117,810 117,810 (16,751) 101,059
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ FEE 2 E
for the year: WA/ (Bi8) -
Release of exchange differences upon (£ B A FEEE
disposal of subsidiaries EiES - - - - - (38,124) - (38,124) - (38,124)
Exchange differences on translation  ESMEETEBE)
of foreign operations EiES - - - - - 844 - 844 (289) 555
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) ~~ EE2ERA/ (KiE)
for the year ot = = o - - (37,280) 117,810 80,530 (17,040) 63,490
Issue of convertible bonds BITERER 30 - - - 19,968 - - - 19,968 - 19,968
Issue of share by allotment BREEMELRA 2 40,103 170,093 - - - - - 210,19 - 210,19
Eercise of share option fifFmmE 3,050 31,762 (13,131) - - - - 21,681 - 21,681
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR - - - - - - - - 38,408 38,408
Equity-settled share option REEERRERE
arrangements 33 - - 2,751 - - - - 2,157 - 2,751
Transfer of share option reserve upon 1 B B i 5K 3
the lapse of share options ERRERRER - - (155) - - - - (155) - (155)
At 31 December 2014 R-B-RE
+-A=t+-8 162,669 920,424* 9421 19,968* (535)* 3,060% (821,219)* 293,788 4115 297,903
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZERBRESNEEMBRAR ZGFERH

of HK$131,119,000 (2013: negative consolidated reserves of
HK$160,705,000) in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GRERERER

Year ended 31 December 2014
BHE-_Z-—NE+_-_A=1+—HItFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FTET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHELENRESRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (B18),a
From continuing operations REFBREER (41,836) (28,732)
From a discontinued operations KB R ERE 142,879 (132,862)
Adjustments for: KA R
Finance costs B & B A 7 19,634 12,466
Share of (profit)/loss of associates PaR(=N s Rl/NE]
Caf),/EE (5,138) 201
Interest income B A 5 (69) (1,202)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME BER
property, plant and equipment HEIE B EE 6 61 665
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B B8 A B 2 b 35 (204,510) -
Depreciation e 14 17,481 31,398
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR b FH & 5
payments 15 896 1,076
Amortisation of other intangible assets — H {th % 2 & 7= # § 17 341 532
Amortisation of deferred income T ST A B2 5 31 (511) (510)
Fair value change on derivative MTEESREE
financial assets RNEEES 23 12,147 -
Imputed interest HEME 7 2,882 -
Provision for inventories FEEE 6 1,077 19,325
Equity settled share option expense MRS E B AR R 2 33 2,602 5,100
(52,064) (92,543)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL, (&) 65,117 (10,378)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEWWE S ET NERE
bills receivables wL (1) 3,494 (9,777)
Increase in prepayments, FERHIE - EE Rk
deposits and other receivables H b fE Y FRIE 1 0 (159,978) (47,069)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables — EfTE 508 (R L),/
0 (35,931) 62,639
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HEfEN B RETER
and accruals CGRA) /#hn (33,114) 17,899
Cash used in operations KETEHMAR S (212,476) (79,229)
Tax paid ERHIA = (410)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2014

HE_T-MF+_A=+—RHILFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FTET FHT

Net cash flows used in KRBT

operating activities Ben= %58 (212,476) (79,639)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHELENRESRE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received B F B 69 1,202
Purchases of items of property, BEMX WENEEEER

plant and equipment (301) (6,159)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE  BEREHIER

property, plant and equipment FTi55K38 2 617
Net cash outflow arising on WHEH B ARIEE 2

acquisition of a subsidiary Be Rt F58 = (6,296)
Net proceeds from disposal of HEMB ARG

subsidiaries RIEFRE 35 54,804 -
Decrease in pledged deposit 2 BT 7,784 29,533
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due JEWEE B AT RIEZ

from related parties B (1) 3,983 (9,091)
Increase in advances to BT —EEE QA

associates FRIE 2 380 (73,355) (2,709)
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing & & &&) (FTA) P

activities Beme FE (7,014) 7,097
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHELENRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN TS FRIE 32 210,196 -
Proceeds from issue of 'sv'ééﬂ—ﬁﬁﬂxﬁ%ﬁﬁ?%fk

convertible bonds 89,600 -
Proceeds from exercise of TR EFTIS 5RIE

shares options 21,681 -
New bank and other borrowings BRI R EMEE 127,429 154,732
Repayment of bank and BERTREMEE

other borrowings (132,426) (32,705)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts FEH F'*E-J BATRIEZ

due to related parties CRLA) (7,543) 41,424
Decrease in bills payable ANES: Pl (19,460) (55,174)
Interest paid BFE (19,634) (12,466)
Net cash flows from financing activities & & & B Fr 13

RemEFHE 269,843 95,811
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GRERERER

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE-_Z-—NE+_A=1+—HItFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FETT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeREBESSEYIEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS b2 50,353 23,269
Cash and cash equivalents FYINBRe LB EEY
at beginning of year 28,316 8,398
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEE [ R BN ) R B R A
changes, net 498 (3,351)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERNEERREEEYD
AT END OF YEAR 79,167 28,316
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRBESZEYEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS oA
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERE MBI EKZS 2
in the consolidated statement of BehkReEEY
financial position 24 79,150 25,487
Cash and cash equivalents attributable IFREEBRER & &
to a discontinued operation SEEY 25 17 2,829
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in = REFABEERERENZ
the consolidated statement of HekReEEY
cash flows 79,167 28,316
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B % AR &

31 December 2014
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H

2014 2013
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 79 49
Interests in subsidiaries AT B A F A RE 18 468,556 167,529
Total non-current assets ERBEELRE 468,635 167,578
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERHIE - ZE Rk
other receivables H {th i Uy 5108 22 920 958
Derivative financial instruments TEEMITA 23 7,745 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEFEY 24 8 20
Total current assets MENEERE 8,673 978
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREEE
Due to related parties FEfHREE N T FIE 38 = 12,410
Other payable and accruals HmENRIBREFTER 27 3,418 2,876
Interest-bearing bank and RITREAME EEE
other borrowings 28 - 9
Total current liabilities mEAERRE 3,418 15,295
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) ﬁ@ﬁg/ (BE)3E 5,255 (14,317)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERRBEE
LIABILITIES 473,890 153,261
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Convertible bonds Al IR 1S 55 30 92,406 -
Net assets BEFE 381,484 153,261
EQUITY EE
Issued capital BTN 32 162,669 119,516
Reserves ] 34(b) 218,815 33,745
Total equity AR 381,484 153,261
Jiang Jianjun IRE Li Jianqing Z8lE
Director BE Director o
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sino Distillery Group Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business
is Unit 1001E, 10/F, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
18 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments are stated at their fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

2.1

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2014
—ET-MFE+-A=+—H
ARER
FEEAEESR AR A —FHERSE
EFRMAZ 2 BR AR ARG
4 AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands £
FTELEWY BB B NERDIEMERK
ZBISTE R BEHEP 10 1001EE »

ARBIR—HREZRAR EMBR
A EBRBEN T RRME18

mARERE
HEERAEMBHRR VBB EGEIA
g ([HEGFERE])BEMNEEY
BmEER ([FAMBHREER]) (8
AR BMBREER FEGTE
A ([EBGHEA]) LRE) FER
REstRAIEEB RGP ERERTE
mEMK-BRETERTADNEAFE
SURRIN - 1t 5 B 75 R TR IR SE AR
EREL WIAB TR Tk 5 A TR
FI ABBESNEIAZEREZILZ
Fh -

REEE

FEBHREEARTNENE AR
(il [NEEDBE-_T—MOF+ =
AZ+t—BUEFENTBRER -HBA
A SRR A R AR AN R RIAEE
WIE—HEABRER - NWEBRARNE
EERER S (I ASEERSGEEL
B REAIR TEEFSIIER BEE
EHER L2 AL FAARERRQAERE
2B Ry EEANRRBRSEL

U

—fRM B AR 2 EH R ALEGEER
IR A B AL AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E Yk

31 December 2014
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2.1

2.2

66

mE+=—A=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that
are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that
begins on or after 1 January 2014:

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 36

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)

HK (IFRIC) - Interpretation 21  Levies

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs and
new interpretation of HK (IFRIC) has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not early adopted the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments HKFRS 11

HKFRS 9

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

Disclosure Initiative?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exemption?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?
Financial Instruments*

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2014
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E Yk

31 December 2014

2.3

24
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

HKFRS 15

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2018

Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards and is not yet in a position
to state whether they will have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Company has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Company and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associate is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investment in an associate, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of an
associate is included as part of the Group's investment
in an associate and is not individually tested for
impairment.

When an investment in an associate is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

24

B R R B
31 December 2014
—E-NE+-A=1+—H

TESTHEEME (&)

MELR (&)
ﬁ%”‘?ﬂ’]%ﬁiﬂ)\$’&ﬂﬁ’ﬂw\$&%%
N UBREEREE BR AR
(RI=PN TE’J&%@T@%&&WH‘%&%EE'J
FSRA N BERFERE  MIIRAK

R E AR E B8 -
%ﬁ#‘ﬂ/‘\ﬁ
BN E GEMB AR AREGIELE)

AAREEEEH— 51329 R20%I% =i
JEHED WAEHEBUNEATEY

g
B

AEERBERRZRERBERDZES
ERA KB R EEFERERRERS
B REE MBI R IR

AEBERGBEARIBMBREE A
EHRAGTAGEBREREMEZEBA
AN -AEEEEBERARRHESE
AR W LB RENEENE SR
AZREHE EREREBERERER
ERCDEEEERERER W o Y E R

EBRAEEZAEFATEERBZ R
Al &E  BIWEETTE R AR

RERRZREDBRFEHEZR
B REEBYBREERESHEE
HEZIRBEERERIEZEERBA
/E\E o

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEER A 7 69

Annual Report 2014 iy



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2014
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEBEEEER A T

Ynual Report 2014 £ 3§

24

TESTHBEBE (&)

EBaHREE
EBEHDIABEEAK BROKE
TANEEBZ A FEFE R FE
AAEEEZENEERKERRNAF
1B ANEE A REETT R E A A
EONRE RAKERT BRI K
JT R IR ) P AR R 2R O KA - B R TS
HET AEREEEEE AR FENRRE
Wk 77 Al @i pl & B R E M A L1 5T
ERRUEE 7 1 SE R B i 2 - BT M
B TREACBRRIZLA DA
BEFENRE A EED WIEIERE
PAARFEEAER SIS -

EARERE BB REAL
B BB B 58 #0055 R AL U
Mo EREN S RAERARE M
PRI B 5 M8 R HEE - e BAE
YR 7 E 4 b e B A S 6T A T BT
DB

2556 0 2 B BUETT BRI A MR
BIRWBARNAFEEERAE M
EAm s RN RSP RER -

BEREDNZKAGE eEEen
B ERRIHE gD LA RE TR
BERRKBETREN A FERLR BE
EPTUW B R B B B E R T AERE
HEER - AR E R EMIA R KRATH
BEEFENRTE RAEREER
HRBEARREERE R



2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination,
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

irrespective of whether other

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g e E

31 December 2014

—=
—=

2.4

72

mE+=—A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vij  the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3%-5%

Plant and machinery 6%-32%

Leasehold improvements, Over the shorter of the
furniture and fixtures lease terms and 33%

Motor vehicles 10%-25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and

equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that

item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the

parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual

values, useful lives and the depreciation method are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing cost on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

24

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

TESTHBEBE (&)
M- BERRENTE (K

BEME WEREFHEEZFENE
RORRE A E A SR AT R M =
HERSBEE - RUBNRMRBZEEF
T

BF 3%-5%

T 55 Kot 25 6%-32%

HEWHEERE HEFHKR3IZ%
R REE (MEBZEREE)

8 10%-25%

W—IBYE BEMZBES D ZAE

FREEY A ER ZIEE &80 2B
i a IR ER B &8 1 1E E Bl
%%oﬂ%FE'Tﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ

FELERNEHBRFELBETERNT
B (gEA) -
—IEYE -BERRE (BRIETEE

ERREARD) R L ER AT EER
SHETBEELENDR S LMHE
RB-MNEERIERFERE L E LK

BEXHEEaERAZENRENEREE
ZHEMGHRIEFREREEZR -

ERIRERNBETZME BFEK
REME A EE B E - THRRAR R
MEEEIR BTN THE-KABHE
BEzBEAAN A RREREEER
ATENMBEREERAR - BEET
RETRIL A HERR  EZT2/E
ANBEBRNZYFE BEEREBEART -

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEER A 7 75

Annual Report 2014 iy



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E

31 December 2014

—=
—=

2.4

76

mE+=—A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Technologies

Purchased technologies are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 30
years.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years.

Distribution rights

Distribution rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over the term of the distribution agreement.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

()

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition.
A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the Group
and the company are deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits and financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures). These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in note 2.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations (continued)

() Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Impairment losses on initial classification as held
for sale, and on subsequent remeasurement
while held for sale, are recognised in profit or
loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified
as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-
current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

(ir) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above) if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
as expense in profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the profit or
loss in financial costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to other expenses in the income statement.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills
and other payables, amounts due to related parties,
convertible bonds and interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the profit or loss.

Equity and compound instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An entity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible bonds) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Equity and compound instruments (continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument'’s
maturity date.

The conversion upon classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as
a whole. This is recognized and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognized in equity will be transferred
to share premium. When the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bond, the balance recognized in equity
will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognized directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortized over the lives of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the
date of the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The resulting profit
or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the contracts are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

U when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and cost, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold; and

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

(c) other income not stated above is recognised
whenever received or receivable.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the operations of the Group. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 33 to the financial
statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control
of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of accumulated losses within
the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or transaction of monetary items are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of subsidiaries in Mainland
China is Renminbi (“"RMB"). As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries in Mainland China
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. There is no carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$468,000), Further details
are presented in note 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an indication that property,
plant and equipment may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate
of the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment. The recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. No impairment of property,
plant and equipment (2013: Nil) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during the year. The
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2014 was 15,715,000 (2013:
HK$18,982,000). Further details are presented in note
14.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation charges for its intangible
assets other than goodwill. This estimate is based on
the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset or the
contractual or other legal rights associated with the
assets. The Group will revise the amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
where the useful life is different to that previously
estimated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Equity-settled share option expense

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-
settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted, using assumptions including expected
volatility, dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate.
Such cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
assessment of net realisable value. Estimates of net
realisable value are based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
amount of provision/reversal of provision in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

Provision for other receivables

Provision for other receivables is made based on an
assessment of the recoverability of other receivables
and the timing of their recovery. The identification of
provision for other receivables requires management
judgement and estimation. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original
estimates, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying amounts of other receivables and the amount
of provision/reversal of provision in the periods in
which such estimates have been changed.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques and making
assumptions that are based on market condition’s
existing at each reporting date. Refer to Note 40 for
the fair value measurement of derivative financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has three reportable operating segments
as follows:

(@  the ethanol segment is engaged in the
production and sale of ethanol products
and ethanol by-products (this segment was
classified as discontinued operations);

(b)  the wine and liquor segment is engaged in the
sale and distribution of wine and liquor; and

(o) the animal feed segment is engaged in the
production and sale of forages.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment results.
Segment results are measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, cash and
cash equivalents and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, amounts due to related parties and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

No intersegment sale and transfer was transacted for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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31 December 2014
—pE+=—A=+—~1
4.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RBELEEP (B)

Wine and Animal  Continuing Discontinued
liquor feed operations operations Total
HEgE R
BE BYEH ¥5% £% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TR TiER TR
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2-Z-ME+=A8
=t-BLFE
Segment revenue: 2EBAN:
Sales to external customers HEFHARP 80,004 - 80,004 115,256 195,260
Other revenue Hih ez 4,891 - 4,891 12,525 17,416
84,895 - 84,895 127,781 212,676
Segment results PEEE (9,816) (72) (9,888) (47,858) (57,746)
Reconciliation: E
Interest income FIEBA 66 3 69
Corporate and other unallocated expenses % R E AR EH T (23,274) - (23,274)
Finance costs MEXA (8,700) (13,816) (22,516)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR L (FE)

(note 35) /g (B335) (40) 204,550 204,510
(Loss)/profit before tax BRAA (BR) B F (41,836) 142,879 101,043
Income tax credit FEHER 16 - 16
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BR)/EH (41,820) 142,879 101,059
Segment assets PEEE 500,501 14,253 514,754 17,191 531,945
Reconciliation: b
Elimination of intersegment receivables i 8% XA I3k (35,775) - (35,775)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ¥ R EMAD @Eéfg 9,309 - 9,309
Total assets AERE 488,288 17,191 505,479
Segment liabilities PEEE 128,560 56 128,616 18,899 147,515
Reconciliation: b
Elimination of intersegment payables WD EEENE (35,775) = (35,775)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities % R E %% ﬁiﬁ 95,836 - 95,836
Total liabilities aERE 188,677 18,899 207,576
Other segment information HitpBER
Share of profit of associates AEHEE D AR 5,138 - 5,138 - 5,138
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRR

(BR) /M (40) - (40) 204,550 204,510
Provision for inventories RERE 1,077 - 1,077 - 1,077
Depreciation and amortisation HER#H 1,727 45 1,772 16,946 18,718
Investment in associates REERARZRE 84,577 - 84,577 - 84,577
Capital expenditure* BEREY* 301 - 301 33 334
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

REsTHER (&)

Wine and Animal Continuing  Discontinued
liquor feed operations operations Total
HEgE b
ik gmaEs £% % Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET THT THT TR
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-Z-—=4F+-A
=+-HIEFE
Segment revenue: DEMAN:
Sales to external customers HETHAEP 94,176 - 94,176 346,609 440,785
Other revenue Hip iz 2,237 - 2,237 6,520 8,757
96,413 - 96,413 353,129 449,542
Segment results PREEE (16,077) (326) (16,403) (126,545) (142,948)
Recondiliation: B
Interest income FBUA 24 1,178 1,202
Corporate and other unallocated expenses % R E A DA BT (7,382) - (7.382)
Finance costs REMKA (4,971) (7,495) (12,466)
Loss before tax R RIEE (28,732) (132,862) (161,594)
Income tax expenses FEHAS (395) - (395)
Loss for the year AEEFE (29,127) (132,862) (161,989)
Segment assets PEEE 231,906 10,695 242,601 339,125 581,726
Reconciliation: B
Elimination of intersegment receivables  J 7 JE i & e 7B (22,153) - (22,153)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ EREMANEEE 1,026 - 1,026
Total assets BERE 221,474 339,125 560,599
Segment liabilities 2EEE 193,105 55 193,160 432,740 625,900
Reconciliation: k-
Elimination of intersegment payables M EBENFR (22,153) - (22,153)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities % REMEXNEEE 15,294 - 15,294
Total liabilities BEERE 186,301 432,740 619,041
Other segment information HitpBER
Share of loss of an associate AMEHEAFER 201 - 201 - 201
Provision for inventories FERE 51 - 51 19,274 19,325
Depreciation and amortisation e R 1,858 45 1,903 31,103 33,006
Investment in associates REENAZRE 6,200 - 6,200 - 6,200
Capital expenditure* BARRZ* 2,018 2 2,020 6,008 8,028
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * EABHSTBEREVE HBELE

plant and equipment.

e
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—mEF+ZA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

Over 90% of the Group's customers are located
in Mainland China and all revenue of the Group
is derived from operations in Mainland China. The
management considers that it is impracticable to
allocate the assets, revenue and segment results to
geographical locations.

Information about a major customer

During the year, there was no external customer
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue of continuing operations (2013: Nil). Revenue
from discontinued operations of approximately
HK$30,700,000 (2013: HK$118,462,000) was derived
from sales to a single customer.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts.
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31 December 2014

—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA -HtWARWE (&)
(continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

WA AU A R D AT T

follows:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEE 80,004 94,176
Other income and gains Hg A R &
Interest income FEWA 66 24
Others HAip 4,891 2,237
4,957 2,261
Discontinued operations RIS
Revenue ON
Sale of goods HEBM 115,256 346,609
Other income and gains H g A & Wz
Amortisation of deferred income BRI (FTFE31)

(note 31) 511 510
Government grants* BRI el B > 11,230 5,343
Interest income FLEWA 3 1,178
Others HAty 784 667

12,528 7,698
* The government grants represent the subsidies * BB AR EBGIRRE N ER T 5

received by the Group from the local government FEANEETES 2 @mih W
for environmental protection and the transformation RERR G A 2SN 2 s AR IE
of new patterns of industrialisation. There are no o

unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these grants.
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6.

LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. KEByERE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REFENBRBRTEBLSHNSG . (5t A) T
(crediting): FIRTBIEFESH:
2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
L FTET FHET
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Cost of inventories sold BEFERNKAR 67,824 78,286
Depreciation e 14 1,625 1,756
Amortisation of other Huh R E EE
intangible assets 17 147 147
Minimum lease payments BIEE B REFLE
under operating leases HMENXEHES
in respect of land and
buildings 6,151 5,903
Auditor’s remuneration Z B RN BN & 1,120 910
Employee benefit expense EERMMAX
(including directors’ (RREEZME) :
emoluments):
Wages and salaries T& N 12,597 13,374
Equity-settled share option R4 & AR X
expense 2,602 5,100
Pension scheme contributions iE k4 5+t 3% 933 1,189
16,132 19,663
Other expenses: Himx:
Loss on fair value change on T4 &M EE A VA
derivative financial assets g5 BiE 23 12,147 -
Foreign exchange HNEE ZREFHE
differences, net - 8
Provision for inventories* FERE 1,077 51
Loss on disposal of HEME - BE R
items of property, RBIEEB 2 BB
plant and equipment 14 140
Loss on disposal of HENB AR ZEE
a subsidiary 35(b) 40 -
Interest income FEBA (66) (24)
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31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. PBRBiAIEE (8)
2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FERT FET
Discontinued operations  #& 1F 48 & #£5%
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERNKAK 147,850 428,927
Depreciation e 14 15,856 29,642
Amortisation of prepaid TEfT L FH & # 4R
land lease payments 15 896 1,076
Amortisation of Hh M\ aE#E
other intangible assets 17 194 385
Employee benefit expense (B E@FIF %
(including directors’ (BREFN:) :
emoluments:
Wages and salaries T & X &N 4,073 13,405
Pension scheme contributions R{K % &t 2|4 =% 1,132 3,725
5,205 17,130
Provision for inventories* FE R = 19,274
Loss on disposal of items HEME - KE K
of property, plant and REEE ZEE
equipment 47 525
Gain on disposal of HERB AT W
a subsidiary 35(a) (204,550) -
Interest income FEHBA (3) (1,178)
* The provision for inventories for the year is included * KEFEEFEBRET AGEBEENEM
in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of PHEBAREZ [HEKE] Ao

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®ERSK
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Continuing operations BESEER
Interest on bank loans and ERAFATBHEEN
other loans wholly repayable RITERREMERNFE
within five years 5,818 4,971
Imputed financial cost on A E R 2 B E R E KA
convertible bond (note 30) (BF#E30) 2,882 -
8,700 4,971
Discontinued operations RIEREER
Interest on bank loans and ARRAFANBEEENIRIT
other loans wholly repayable EREEMEREFE
within five years 3,429 1,310
Interest on trade payables BB SHIEZHE 10,387 6,185
13,816 7,495
8.  DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEHM

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 78 of
schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622), with reference to Section 161
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.32), is as follows:

RIE LR RFHBEBRRIRD (622
B)MRNETIEL 2 E /N F R A&
(ERNE)BIERBEZAFEESH
[P

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Fees we 1,452 1,237
Other emoluments: B -

Equity-settled share option expense Wﬁé EEBARER 269 903

Pension scheme contributions IRIREFTEIHR 17 14

286 917

1,738 2,154

106  sino Distillery Group Limited FE B EEEER 2 7

Ynual Report 2014 F 3§




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

8.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EZIM(&\E)
In prior years, certain directors were granted share RUAREE  BIEARATEIRESE &
options, in respect of their services to the Group, FTEERHENAEEELE ZIREME
under the share option scheme of the Company, W E— S EH N RREN
further details of which are set out in note 33 to the 33 MR EEBEHATES B REM
financial statements. The fair value of such options, 2EWM AR IERNEEISE B AT E
which has been recognised in the consolidated RIEPBHET ST ANEETKRE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive HEBENR FIMEEWESHESTENRN

income over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in
the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIIHTES
2014 2013

Equity-settled Equity-settled

share option share option
Fees expense Total Fees expense Total

RELE RiELEE
e BREMRX @zt Be  BRERX @
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz THER TER TER TiEn TiEn TEL
Dr. Loke Yu REmEL 100 10 110 100 - 100
Mr. Ho Man Fai AXBRE (i 28 10 38 - - -
Mr. Li Xiaofeng e S 50 10 60 50 - 50
Mr. Zhang Yonggen FABEE (i) 45 - 45 100 13 113
223 30 253 250 13 263
(i) Appointed on 13 June 2014, retired on 26 (i) RZZE-—WHEXA+=H
June 2014 and re-appointed on 26 June BEZE - RZ_T—WOFSA
2014. ZHRARE TR ZFT—N

FRAZTRBEERE-

(i) Resigned on 13 June 2014, (ii) RZZE—WFENAT=H#
fTe

There were no other emoluments payable to FRNWMENBIIFNTERZ

the independent non-executive directors during EMe (ZF—=F )

the year (2013: Nil).
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31 December 2014
—F-mFEF-A=+—§

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. BEHM(E)
(b)  Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITEERIEHTES
directors
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense  contributions remuneration
e 28 RELE Rik&HE
ne RENRE BRERX 5 240 Pt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TET FET FET FAET TET
2014 ZE-MF
Executive directors: BIES:
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TR EE (i) 253 - 10 - 263
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRERE 360 - 2 17 379
Mr. Li Jianging ZRELE 0] 253 - 207 = 460
Mr. Qu Shuncai RIEZ T4 100 - 10 - 110
Mr. Song Shaohua ROELE (i 163 - - - 163
1,129 - 229 17 1,375
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Huang Qingxi EFBEE 100 - 10 - 110
1,229 - 239 17 1,485
2013 “F-zf
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Han Dong BREE (i) 35 - 890 - 925
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRERE (v) 400 - - 12 412
Mr. Qu Shuncai BB % 4E 100 - - - 100
Mr. Song Shaohua ROELE () 286 - - - 286
821 - 890 12 1,723
Non-executive directors: ~ JESTES:
Mr. Chen Hua BRERE (v 21 - - - 21
Mr. Huang Qingxi EFBEEAE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Kong Hor Fai TERLE (vi) 10 - - - 10
Mr. Lo Peter BRERE (v) 35 - - 2 37
166 - - 2 168
987 - 890 14 1,891
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2014
—E-mEF-A=+—H

8.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEEHM (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HMITESERIHTEE (E)

directors (continued)

Notes: B 5T

0) Appointed on 18 April 2014. (i) R-ZZE-—NFMA+N\RE
ZiTo

(ii) Resigned on 13 June 2014. (i) KZB-OFXAT=HF
Eo

(i) Retired on 7 May 2013. iy HRZTE—=FRAtHREF-

(iv)  Appointed on 15 March 2013. vy RZZE—=F=-AThHEE
ZfEe

(v) Resigned on 8 May 2013. (v) RZE—=FRANRAEE-

(vi) Resigned on 15 March 2013. (vi) R-ZE—=ZF=ZA+HHE
Feo

There was no arrangement under which FRAWEEMNEEHEXRER

a director waived or agreed to waive any REMFHM 28

remuneration during the year.
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b e E

31 December 2014

—E-mF+=A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year
include two (2013: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2013: three), highest paid employees who are not a
director of the Company, are as follows:

TEEEHER

ER RAREHESREMA (T
—ZF W) EE HEHEEC 8
REXHES RAFER L5 =%
(—E—=F ZR)BSHEE (L
AATEE) 2 HWEENT -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Salaries, allowances and e EMEEYFZE
benefits in kind 831 1,235
Equity-settled share option expense IR 45 BB AR R 7 2 830 4,428
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHE R 35 17
1,696 5,680

The number of non-director and highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

R FEFREBEZ2MEN FTIE

R

Number of employees

BEHE
2014 2013
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T 2 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
Over HK$2,000,000

During the year and in prior years, share options
were granted to certain non-director, highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 33 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX

During the year, no Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided as there was no assessable profit arising from
Hong Kong (2013: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax

B 7 3R R Y aE
31 December 2014
—E-NUF+=-A=+—H

10. FSH
FRN - BHRITEESBBEENERT R
- W BB ANEHHERE (ZF
—=F ) ERMm AN B ATIE
ERASERTEAEEEENTE

prevailing in the Mainland China in which the Group VEHETE -
operates.

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Under-provision in previous years TERETE - 410
Current BPHR - -
Deferred (note 29) JEIE (MI7E29) (16) (15)
Total tax (credit)/expenses for the year AFEFHIE (%), FIxE%58 (16) 395

A reconciliation of the tax expenses/(credit) applicable
to loss before tax at the statutory rate for Hong
Kong in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax credit at the effective tax rate,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the
statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as
follows:

RAES (EARREKBARNER
$0) 2% 55 7 2 0 A I 6 A A9 0 B O
BISE (i) BUR RIS B B MBI
15 B0 - A REARE (AR E)
HEEH BN T -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Continuing operations FREREER
Loss before tax BrEZATE 1B (41,836) (28,732)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTENHIE (6,903) (4,747)
Effect of different tax rates of MEBARITRBENE
subsidiaries 3,763 714
Adjustments in respect of BB M 2 BNEAFR I8 2
current tax of previous periods T = 410
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A FE 2 4,321 3,563
Tax losses not recognised RERHNIBEE 88 399
(Profit)/loss attributable to an associate & A &) fE1G CaFl) &8 (1,285) 50
Tax (credit)/expenses at the Group's BAEEERHMETENTIE
effective rate (EH), FX (16) 395
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BB R MY R

31 December 2014
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Discontinued operations BRI BT

Profit/(Loss) before tax BRERTER (E18) 142,879 (132,862)
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEREFENTIEA 23,575 (21,922)

Effect of different tax rates of MEBARITRMERNTE
subsidiaries 12,147 (11,291)
Expenses not deductible for tax REL A ol5 3 237 323
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARMBANT B E (51,138) -
Tax losses not recognised RERHTIEEE 15,179 32,890

Tax expense at the Group's
effective rate

The share of tax attributable to an associate

BARBERTERFENHA
EE3

DA E N F (TR IE A1,285,00058 70

amounting to HK$1,285,000 (2013: HK$50,000) is —T—=4%:50,00087C) Bt ALA
included in “Share of profit/(loss) of associates” in BamEMEEBARERZ DMHBEA
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BEA, (BE)ET -
comprehensive income.

11.  PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 11. BLAREEAEGER (&E)
THE PARENT
The consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to owners HE - Z—NF+-_A=1+—HIF

of the parent for the year ended 31 December 2014
includes a loss of approximately HK$26,224,000
(2013: HK$2,981,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

12. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:

Nil).

12. RE

—ZHFE)-
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13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

For continuing and discontinued operations

B R R B
31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H
13. ERERN(&H#E)
BRERAEF, (E18) THIRA D FRE
BEAELRT (BE)BRAFADE
TR BT B

2014 2013
Profit/(loss) attributable to the equity ~ AQ AR & B A B
holders of the Company (HK$'000) wH,(EE|) (8T 117,810 (126,770)
Weighted average number of EETEBR 2 METHH
ordinary shares in issue ("000) (FH%) 1,523,485 1,195,162
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARF, (EE)
(HK cents) CEALD 7.73 (10.61)
For continuing operations B ETR
2014 2013
Profit/(loss) attributable to the equity — ZRA &I B AFE(L
holders of the Company (HK$'000) wR(EE) (F8T) 117,810 (126,770)
Add: (ProfitYloss attributable to AR B AE R A EAE 2K
the equity holders of the BRRIEREEB 2
Company from discontinued CaA) /BE (FAET)
operations (HK$'000) (158,057) 99,972
Loss attributable to the equity RATIRERE ABIERBFE
holders of the Company KEEK BB (TA8T)
from continuing operations
(HK$'000) (40,247) (26,798)

Weighted average number of ordinary & %17 & @A% 2 it F19 &

shares in issue ('000) (Fh)

1,523,485 1,195,162

Basic loss per share (HK cents) SRR EAREE OB1) (2.64) (2.24)
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b e E

31 December 2014
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H

13.  EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 13. ERERN(F#E) (&)
For discontinued operations RIEREXEK
Basic earnings/(loss) per share FIRBEREF - (E1E)
2014 2013

Profit/(loss) attributable to the equity AN AR ERE B A EIH A 1E

holders of the Company from AR,/ (E18)

discontinued operations (HK$'000) (F#&T) 158,057 (99,972)
Weighted average number of AR EERER

shares for the purpose of basic BH, (E18) kK

earnings/(loss) per share ('000) M (FiR) 1,523,485 1,195,162
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARRF, (FEE)

(HK cents) &AL 10.37 (8.36)
No diluted earnings/(loss) per share has been RARFATECETEHEEL LT BRI K
presented for the years ended 31 December 2014 and RAF M ARITEERENITEERNAR
31 December 2013 as there was no dilutive potential NEIRHEFEARTFHETE Q&S5
ordinary share outstanding during the year and the HEz T NF+-_A=+—HRKZ=Z
exercise price of the Company's outstanding share —=F+ZA=+—RHLEFENSRKRE
options was higher than the average market price for SERA, (BE) -

the Company's share during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 2014 HE_Z - NFIFE2SREERT
did not assume the exercise of the share options and WERRITEERERERABRRE
conversion of the convertible bonds since the exercise F RARTELREREERANEAESR
and conversion had an anti-dilutive effect on the R&ETE -

earnings per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the diluted BE_ZT—=F+_A=1t—HIHFE
loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share, 2 EBREEHEATREREEAER -
as the share options had an anti-dilutive effect on the REAZBRESGREBAEREEY
loss per share. Zo
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

14. YE BERRE

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture and Motor
Group Buildings fixtures vehicles Total
HE
MELE
N | EF BRREE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
31 December 2014 “EZ-ME+=A=+-H
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+ZA=+—H
at 1 January 2014: ERZE-mFE-A—R:
Cost AR 19,214 13,259 1,484 33,957
Accumulated depreciation and ZFHERRE
impairment (3,835) (10,463) (677) (14,975)
Net carrying amount REFE 15,379 2,796 807 18,982
At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated R =Z—NF—F—H "
depreciation and impairment N&kZHATERRE 15,379 2,796 807 18,982
Additions NE - 47 254 301
Disposals HE - (16) = (16)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMBLE = (1,614) = (1,614)
Depreciation provided during the year FR:HEHE (819) (489) (317) (1,625)
Exchange realignment b 7 % (268) (43) 2) (313)
At 31 December 2014, net of RZT—NF
accumulated depreciation and +-A=+—8"
impairment MK RFAMERRE 14,292 681 742 15,715
At 31 December 2014: RZZ-WF+ZA=1—
H:
Cost AR 18,871 11,061 1,726 31,658
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERRE
impairment (4,579) (10,380) (984) (15,943)
Net carrying amount REFE 14,292 681 742 15,715
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BB R MY R

31 December 2014
—ET-NFE+=ZHA=+—H
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14.

14. Y% BERZE (&)

Leasehold
improvements,
Plantand  furniture and Motor  Construction
Group Buildings machinery fixtures vehicles in progress Total
HE
nERE
AEE BF  HEREE GAREE "E ERIE @z
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TiER FET T
31 December 2013 ZE-ZEtZAZt-8
At 31 December 2012 and at RZE-Z%+-A=+-A
1 January 2013: RZE-=5-A-H:
Cost PR 121,347 329,800 11,088 11,155 32,216 505,606
Accurnulated depreciation and ZEMERNE
impairment (58,626) (193,485) (9,782) (3,930) (3,090) (268,913)
Net carrying amount REBTE 62,721 136,315 1,306 7,225 29,126 236,693
At 1 January 2013, net of accumulated ~ RZF—=F—fF—H"
depreciation and impairment B2 FERAE 62,721 136,315 1,306 7,225 29,126 236,693
Additions RE 7 1,638 74 299 4141 6,159
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—FHBAR - - 1,869 - - 1,869
Disposals HE - (991) (17) (274) - (1282)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRHRHTE (4,321) (24,842) (559) (1,676) - (31,398)
Transfers £t - 334 - 449 (783) -
Transfers to assets classified as held BREHBARENEZEE
for sales (44,391) (115,497) 2 (5,346) (33,140) (198,372)
Exchange realignment R 1,363 3,043 121 130 656 5313
At 31 December 2013, net of accumulated R =F—=F+=-f=+-8"
depreciation and impairment B2 FTERAE 15,379 - 2,79 807 - 18,982
At 31 December 2013: WZE-=#+-A=1-A:
Cost KA 19,214 - 13,259 1,484 - 33957
Accurnulated depreciation and ZEMERNE
impairment (3,835 - (10,463) (677) - (14,975)
Net carrying amount FHETE 15,379 - 2,7% 807 - 18,982

At 31 December 2014, no items of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment classified as assets

held for sale (2013: HK$44,362,000) were pledged to

secure bank loans (note 25).

116 sino Distillery Group Limited FE B EEEER 2 7

Ynual Report 2014 F 3§

RZZE—NF+_A=+—H FEH
WMABEHEZEEZAEBYE W

EREE(ZE—=%:44,362,000/&
TC) THMEARITE R Z I (BisE25) -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

Carrying amount at 1 January

Recognised during the year FAER

Transfer to assets classified as EBRESIER
held for sale FHEHEZEE

Exchange realignment P H 88

Carrying amount at 31 December

Current portion included in
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

FERDEREE 7

Non-current portion

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is
held under a medium term lease.

At 31 December 2014, no leasehold land of the
Group classified as assets held for sale (2013:
HK$16,027,000) was pledged to secure bank loans
(note 25).

R—A—B®OKRHEE

EALES
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR
- 33,264
- (1,076)
- (32,894)
- 706

R+t-—A=1t—HNEEE - -
SIATEN IR B E )
H A e W R 9 B R AR

ME T RIEPHBORE LR F
PNz

R-ZE—NF+_A=+—H &S

EARELEEEZASEHE T 1
—E—=4%:16,027,000/8 T) J1EA

IRITE R HEIR (FTzE25) °
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b e E

31 December 2014
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. BE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 January: R—H—H8:
Cost DN 71,557 71,089
Accumulated impairment ZEHREE (71,089) (71,089)
Net carrying amount FREEFRE 468 -
Cost at 1 January, net of MW—R—B 24k
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo b — I B /8 A A - 468
Disposal of a subsidiary & —FEKEB A A (467) -
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 & (1) -
Cost and net carrying amount RT+ZA=+—HB2ZKA K
at 31 December FREEFEE - 468
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Cost DN 71,557 71,557
Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE (71,557) (71,089)
Net carrying amount FREEF5E - 468
Impairment testing of goodwill BmEZEENR
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has BREBEMHREBELHEESEZSY
been allocated to the animal feed cash-generating unit FRRHR & 2 B AL LAERE B -

for impairment testing.
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16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODW.ILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was
15.0% and cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using a growth rate of 5%. As at
31 December 2014, no carrying amount for goodwill
due to disposal of a subsidiary.

Other key assumptions for value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation
is based on past performance and management’s
expectations.

No impairment loss (2013: Nil) was recognised and
allocated to goodwill in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year.

16.

B 7 3R R Y aE
31 December 2014
—E-NUF+=-A=+—H
e (&)

BEZHENR (&)
AlEeEIREBERRERERE R
ENTFHC U BEERARESRETER
RERAEEFEMET -EARREM
SR 2R ERB15.0% MBAAF
HMzREeERETNERAERES% T A
AR —_FTE—NFE+_A=+—H I
EATERBARME EHBERAEE-

BERERAEBEFEZEMBEZRRIIEA
REZRAG EEBRBREHERE
ME-BRAMFDHENBERRALEE
EBHIEmIEL -

WENAFE 2GR BRa MEM 2RI
ABRKRERREBR (ZF—=F: §)
ROBERE-
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HtEREE
Distribution
Group Technologies Trademarks rights Total
bS] i HE DR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET AT FEx FET
31 December 2014 —E-|mE
+=ZA=t+-H
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of RZE—NFE—A—H
accumulated amortisation and BORCA - bR 25t
impairment BRI E - 2,620 - 2,620
Amortisation provided during the year 4 Py 84 {5 - (147) - (147)
Exchange realignment 0 5 A% = 49 - 49
At 31 December 2014 WZZE—LF
+-A=1+—H - 2,522 - 2,522
At 31 December 2014: R-ZT—F
+-RA=+-H
Cost AR 165,503 3,123 56,542 225,168
Accumulated amortisation and R EELAE
impairment (165,503) (601) (56,542) (222,646)
Net carrying amount EEETS - 2,522 - 2,522
31 December 2013 —E-=F
+=ZR=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2013, net of R-ZE—=F—f—H
accumulated amortisation and ROBA - Bk 228
impairment KRB - 12,140 - 12,140
Amortisation provided during the year 4 %98 84 - (532) - (532)
Transfer to assets classified as ERENE AR
held for sale PEZEE - (9,164) - (9,164)
Exchange realignment R - 176 - 176
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=F
+-RA=+-H - 2,620 - 2,620
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=%F
+-RA=+-H
Cost AR 165,503 3,179 56,542 225,224
Accumulated amortisation and REEHELAE
impairment (165,503) (559) (56,542) (222,604)
Net carrying amount REETE - 2,620 - 2,620




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. BEEREE (8)
Impairment testing of other intangible assets HitEmFEE 2 HE R
Technologies it
The Group directed most of its resources to the REERFARAKSHNERERREANEFRN
development of the Group’s ethanol business and B G HEER  NEFE YL
wine and liquor business, the development of the HREABERETIER MR R %
Group's animal feed business was hindered. As there BN HEBEHERA RS ——F8AE
is no projected revenue for the animal feed business, B8 2 1T 2 B R R (B B 1869,972,00058
the technologies have been fully impaired with an IT ©
impairment loss of HK$69,972,000 recognised in
2012.
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. MRHB AR BREZR
Company
NN
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JELEMRG KA 314,917 314,917
Due from subsidiaries N NGBS 612,245 311,218
927,162 626,135
Impairment? VRN (458,606) (458,606)
468,556 167,529
# An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted # ETIELMEEREWRNE QT
investments and due from subsidiaries with carrying RECHERBRE EFEEED A
amounts of HK$277,917,000 and HK$309,305,000 277,917,0007% 7T %309,305,0007% 7T
(before deducting the impairment loss), respectively. (RIBRFEER) -
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31 December 2014
—ET-NFE+=ZHA=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. MRHIBATBIREZR (&)
The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the FIA AN B A TR E & EL KT B
investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured, NAIFBAEERM B NERTER
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. Hl-BEERAE ZZEVFER AT T
In the opinion of the directors, these advances are BARZEREER
considered as quasi-equity loans to the subsidiaries.
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: NG RIS N
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
TEMRYL CRITEE/
£ HEfREE L MR AEE APREEBREAAL TEEY
Direct Indirect
E# i
BAPP Ethanol Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$4,450,682 100 - Investment holding
RERIHE/BR 4,450,682 7T REER
BAPP (Northwest) Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
RERELES /BE 1% REZK
Ningxia West Bright New Resource PRC/Mainland China RMB45,010,558 - 100 Dormant
Technology Co., Ltd.*
EERPRVIEREM RE S RE AR AR 45,010,5587T BEfE
RiTER A
China Beidahuang Industry Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Inactive
Group Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as Skymax
International Investment
Enterprise Limited)
FELAREXSEZRERATF Bt 1%L A
(AERTRERECEERAR)
Bio-Dynamic China Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
EMBHREERAA Bt 1%L REZK
Harbin Niu Wang Muye PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000 - 100 Research and
Management Co., Ltd.* development
BRBTEHFERERAR N AR 1,500,0007C B R FA g
Harbin Meiming Wenshi PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Distribution of wine and
Spirit Sales Co., Limited* liquor
BREXEHEER N ARH 5,000,0007 AIBE
HERB AT
Rightsouth Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$4,694,001 100 - Investment holding
RERIHE /B 4,694,001% 7T REER
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18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

18. RKIBARMER (F)

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR/ BRITEE/
a8 HEMREE L AMRAEE AARELERERAL TEREH
Direct Indirect
Ef B
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor PRC/Mainland China RMB 12,500,000 - 70  Retail sales and
Franchised Stores Limited** distribution of wine
and liquor
BENBEEEEEHEARAR hE R EARE AR 12,500,0007T BRTENRNH
Power Range Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
NERERBR AR HBRAEE /BE 2ET REZR
JGJ (China) Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
EEME () KEBRAR Bk iy REZK
Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Distribution of wine and
Trading Limited* liquor
RYmELRRERHEERAF hE R EAE AR 10,000,000 7B
Hunan Meiming Wenshi Jiuguijiu PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 - 100 Distribution of wine and
Sales Limited* liquor
HEEEREBRAHERSRAT  FH PEAR AR #15,000,0007T 7B
Keen Vitality Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100 - Inactive
RBRIEE /B 50,0005 T TEEx
China Phoenix Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Inactive
FEEEEEFR AT Bt AT TEek
China Silver Group Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Inactive
FEREEZRERAT BE 100787 TEex
* Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise * REFEAEFMAIIEBENE -
under the PRC law.
*x Registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture *% REPEAEFMATRINEERE-

under the PRC law.
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18.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below:

REL A NER (&)
ERRBINTEESTRR %%%¢F§'
XEABRAKEEEFEETRMOZ
ARmMBAF - i%.mﬁhfm\ﬁﬁw
BARZHBRHARTTR.

AEBEHEBEEAERER B AR
ZEEESNT

2014 2013
Percentage of equity interest held by — FEIZERIERMIFRIET Db
non-controlling interests:
Ningxia Kelong Industrial EENEEXRARAA
Co., Limited* N/A 7~EH 49%
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BMNBEEEEEEHGRA
Franchised Stores Limited 30% 30%
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Loss for the year allocated to DB T IEERER 2
non-controlling interests: FEEE:
Ningxia Kelong Industrial Co., Limited ZEER[EZEZAER A A (67) (28)
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BN BEEEEEEHEER A A
Franchised Stores Limited (698) (1,233)
Accumulated balances of REER HﬁﬁH g
non-controlling interests at RETAERR
the reporting dates:
Ningxia Kelong Industrial Co., Limited ZEEREEEAR A A - 5,748
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor BMNBEEEEREEEGRA
Franchised Stores Limited 4,115 4,891

* The subsidiary was disposed during the year.
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31 December 2014
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RMBATIWRER (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TR MM B AT Z & E R
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts B ESBEINERAT M

disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B :

Guangzhou
Wine and
Ningxia Liquor
Kelong Franchised
Industrial Co Stores
Limited Limited

25 & MBS
MESX =SHHEEFEH
BRAF BRAF

HK$’000 HK$'000
2014 —E-IF FERT FERT
Revenue WA - 73,346
Total expense sz 4858 (137) (75,672)
Loss for the year FEERE (137) (2,326)
Total comprehensive loss for the year  F/E 2 H EE4%E (137) (2,326)
Current assets MENE E - 35,638
Non-current assets EMBEE - 50
Current liabilities nEaE - (21,975)
Net cash flows (used in)/from KRS (TR FTis
operating activities REREFE (1) 3,128
Net cash flows from investing activities % & EENFTSHE &
e TR - 2
Net cash flows used in BMEEBMAREEREFE
financing activities - (3.604)
Net decrease in cash and RekREFEDY
cash equivalents B FEE (1) (474)
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. MRHIBATBREZR (&)
Guangzhou
Wine and
Ningxia Liquor
Ke Long Franchised
Industrial Co Stores
Limited Limited
=g N B %R
RIEEX HEEEH
BRAA AR AA
HK$'000 HK$'000
2013 —F—= FHET FHET
Revenue A - 85,011
Total expense BRX (58) (89,123)
Loss for the year FEEE (58) (4,112)
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FE 2 HEEETE (58) (4,112)
Current assets MENE E 9,982 50,419
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,780 282
Current liabilities mBEE 31 (34,396)
Net cash flows (used in)/from &ESES) (T FBIRER
operating activities =55 (228) 790
Net cash flows from REEBABHASREFE
investing activities - 22
Net cash flows used in BMEEBMAREREFHE
financing activities - (232)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and B RBESEEY (RD)
cash equivalents N EE (228) 580
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEZAT>HRE

Group

AEHE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Share of net assets TIREEFE 8,513 3,491
Advances to associates T — S N [ 2 IR 76,064 2,709
84,577 6,200

During the year, two new associates Hunan Dianzang
Jiuguijiu Liquor Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Dianzang”) and
Shenzhen Huayin Jinshajiang Investment Development
Co., Ltd. ("Huayin lJianshajiang”) are added to the
Group. Hunan Laohangzun Liquor Sales Co., Ltd.
(“Hunan Laohangzun”) has acquired the interest
of Hunan Dianzang and Huayin Jianshajiang was
newly set up and invested by Hunan Laohangzun.
Both the new associates are wholly-owned by Hunan
Laohangzun as at 31 December 2014.

FA - AN EIE IR fE FEE S QB
HEEREHEGR AR (AR HRE])
AR EREDTREEREGR AT
(TEREDT]) - HEETEBEEBR
AR (DAEETE]) WEH AR
Pt MERESDITHRPEETEINR
UERRE - R _E-—WOFE+_A=+—
B mEFBEAREHAEETES
BB -

Percentage of

Nominal value of Place of ownership interest
issued/registered incorporation/ attributable to
Name share capital registration the Group  Principal activities
BRI/ EEEERS
1 RAEE HERAYL/ EME BEEEZAAL FEEH
Hunan Laohangzun* RMB10,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 30  Trading of wine
(Formerly known as
Hunan Dongcang)
AEETE AR¥10,000,000  HEL/HREKE EEE
(RTiE AR
Xiangxi Laohangzun* RMB600,000 PRC/Mainland China 28.5  Trading of wine
(Formerly known as
Xiangxi Zizhizhou)*
BB AR®600,000r  RE/REIARE ERES
(FIREMRE B RN ) *
Hunan Dianzang* RMB2,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 30  Trading of wine
Hm AR%2,000000 B/ REARE ERE
Huayin Jinshajiang* RMB10,000,000  PRC/Mainland China 30 Investment holding
EHSPIT AR¥10,000,000  HE/HREKE REER

* Not audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited.

* WIEMBE SN ES AR AR
TEZ -
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19. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.

The Group's shareholdings in the associate is held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Hunan Laohangzun and Huayin Jinshajiang which
are considered material associates of the Group, are
accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Hunan Laohangzun adjusted for any

RBEQRZRE (&)
AEBTVEBARNRZ 2 BN ERRR
BxltE RE] e

MEAZTERERSDT (RE/EAE
B2 EBREERR]) HEAEREAR-

TRETHBHREAMEEMAR
MR BB EREE R B AR

differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to %%#&%WEEETEZ;#EE-
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Current assets MENE E 12,261 12,473
Non-current assets ERBENEE 7,111 6,314
Current liabilities mEaE (3.336) (7,205)
Net assets BEFE 16,036 11,582

Reconciliation to the Group's interest B AEBABE N Al 2 X2

in the associate: AR -
Proportion of the Group's ownership N B A #E 2 L] 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZREE 4,811 3,475
Revenues WA 20,365 -
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHH, (Ei8) 17,333 (669)
Total comprehensive AEEZERA (EBE) B8

income/(loss) for the year 17,333 (669)
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Huayin Jinshajiang adjusted for any

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2014
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19. REEQRZKRE (&)
TRAEFERESD T 2 BERBE -
ERSHBREEERAE KBRS

differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to F& R 35 Fh 2 BE [ B W EE -
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Current assets mBEE 12,499 -
Current liabilities nBEE (180) -
Net assets BEFE 12,319 -
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in ~ EAZR &£ BBt & A F 2
the associate: B iR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership EREEEEEL 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the investment RERAEE 3,696 -
Revenues WA - _
Loss for the year FEEE (6) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FETHEEEE (6) -
The following table illustrates the financial information THRERAEF W IEERE A B
of the Group’s associate that is not individually NEZ B EER
material:
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Share of the associate’s loss for the year {5 28 & E B & A 7] &5 18 (60) -
Share of the associate’s total DB E RN R 2 EBERE
comprehensive loss (60) -
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBRBEARREZ
Group's investments in the associate BEREE 6 16
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 1®FE
Group
rEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Finished goods X oh 36,772 59,670
Provision for inventories FTERE (1,383) (322)
35,389 59,348
21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. EWEBEESRE
Other than the cash and credit card sales, the Group BRIV REAREEIN REFBZEE
allows a credit period which is generally one month, H—MAE—@EA MEAEZFISLEE
extending up to three months for major customers. E=@ARB -BUNEPLHEEZSEER
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The WMo REBUWEGREREKZESESRE
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit BESEBEEITMAEAY S EMEZER
enhancements over its trade and bills receivable HoEWE SERMEEH TR -
balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
None of the trade and bills receivables is impaired. An MEREWZSEZNEEADRME R
aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at WEHKR EWESERREERRE
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice HEIEI SR ESR ST T
date, is as follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within 1 month — @A R 8,087 4,332
1 to 2 months —ZEM1E A 178 133
2 to 3 months W2 = A 498 -
Over 3 months Bid=1EA 162 165
8,925 4,630
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EWESERAREE (&)

BRIk £ R R AT THIRRE BINE
SERREBRZRERITWT

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.
The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that

are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

Group

rEH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired R AT AROBE 8,561 4,332
Less than 1 month past due BHLR—EA 202 133
Over 3 months past due B HARE A = 1B A 162 165
8,925 4,630

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

All the trade and bills receivables are denominated in
Renminbi.

I8 TR AR (B 2 FE UK IR B K & 5 1]
WEEBNCEZZHREF AR

BHERREZERFRER AN RES
RIFABRBEZETBYLEFPER-R
EBELR ARREZTRAEFIMZ
SRSERERE RARKEEERY
BEABY MRS EHRIDRR A B
Yo

AR E ZRAMZEBGAARE
Ao
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22,

132

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. FENFRE -ReREMERIE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
b3 | NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAEL THERT FET
Prepayments BRHE 64,796 68,320 920 958
Deposits and other receivables e M EmERRIE 173,817 11,430 = -
Tax recoverable EEEE3E 381 1,571 = -
238,994 81,321 920 958
Provision for other receivables Hoh U RIE B - (676) = -
238,994 80,645 920 958

Included in deposits and other receivables, there are
several earnest money paid to potential investees.

Amounted to RMB35,000,000 was paid to an agent
for seeking new investment opportunity. The agent
failed to find a suitable project within the agreed
period and the amount was fully refunded in January
2015.

Approximately RMB69,800,000 was paid for the
negotiations on various new projects with potential
investees. The projects relate to logistic business. The
negotiations were still at preliminary stage and no
legal-binding agreement was signed. The deposits
are refundable in the case that the projects are not
executed.
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23.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, ERRE-RekHMERFRE
RECEIVABLES
At the end of the reporting period, there was no RS HAR - I A B H A FEUGRIB(E
provision for other receivables (2013: HK$676,000 B (ZZF—=%:676,000/8 T« H#
with a carrying amount before provision HK$676,000). R ARE B /676,000 7T ) °
Save as disclosed above, none of the above assets B Bt PR RSN SR IA B E RBH
is either past due or impaired. The financial assets HERE LERBEZERMEE
included in the above balances relate to receivables for EA A I AR AR Bk 2 FEUGR B
which there was no recent history of default.
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables NEMEMHEzZRE ASRERE
denominated in other currency ftb & W IR
Included in the deposits, prepayments and other & AR FIE K H M B W R IE B HE A
receivables are the following amounts denominated in EREBEUININCERTEZAT SR :
a currency other than the presentation currency:
2014 2013
RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000
AR¥TR TExT ARETRT T
189,217 236,390 62,810 79,887
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. {TH£gmIA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Convertible bond — option component — A] #2 i% {& % — iR 2 58H

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon
rate of 8% per annum at a total principal value of
HK$89,600,000 on 7 August 2014 to an independent
third party (the “bondholder”). The convertible bonds
will mature at 6 February 2016 at its principal amount
or can be converted into 128,000,000 shares at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.7 per share.

7,745 -

ARER_F-HFNALARA—2E
VEZH(MEFRAADNETAEA
#/389,600,000/8 7T RE & R B EF
8% H) A IR E S - AT IE SN = F
—AREZARNBRASEIS HAH
BHEFHAANERIZTR0.7ET ZERSE
#173128,000,000/% i {7 ©
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 23. fTEE€RmIHE (&)
The fair value of the convertible bonds of A] #f& (& 25 #9 A F{E89,590,0005% 7T H
HK$89,590,000 was valued by an independent valuer, B ERS A B ET G REBEREER
APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited, as at AR ZE—WME A HFH - AT
7 August 2014. The convertible bonds comprise a EAEBIEAERS HIREH RIZEE
liability component, a conversion component and an ClRIERE o
early redemption option.
The redemption option is re-measured at fair value of EOEEER _ZT—NFE+_A=+—
approximately HK$7,745,000 at 31 December 2014, HiZ A F(EX)7,745,0008 TEHATE
resulting in fair value loss amounted to approximately BH N TEEIE412,174,0008 TN E
HK$12,174,000 being recognised under “Loss on E2FE-MFF+_A=+—HILEFEHN
fair value change on derivative financial assets, net” meBmkEME2ERAREPERR
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and [ATEEMEEATFTEEHELENE
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 R - AR ESFME D RIEREITA
December 2014. The movement of the redemption TEZHHFHH|MT:
option derivative of the convertible bond is set out
below:”
HK$'000
FHET
Fair value of the redemption option AR ESNEREEEITETA
derivative of the convertible bonds RZZE-—NHFENARELBHRFE
at 7 August 2014 19,919
Less: Loss arising on changes in fair value 3 : AAFEZEHELENEE 12,174
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE-—ME+-_A=+—H 7,745
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 24, BeRBESZEYRCERER
DEPOSITS
Group Company
r5E NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET TER TR
Cash and bank balances Be MR 79,150 25,487 8 20
Time deposits THER = 7,784 = -
79,150 33,271 8 20
Less: )k
Pledged for bills payable ERENZEREZER
(note 26) (Pi7E26) = (7,784) - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBeEEY 79,150 25,487 8 20
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24.

25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$79,039,000 (2013: HK$25,338,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 6
months depending on the immediate cash equivalents
of the Group and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(i) On 24 February 2013, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”),
entered into the Agreement with the
Zhaodong Beidahuang Biotechnology Limited
and Linxiang Huayin Changjiang Small and
Medium Enterprises Guarantee Limited (the
“Purchasers”), whereby the Purchasers have
conditionally agreed to purchase and the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell all the
75% equity interest in Harbin China Distillery
Company Limited held by the subsidiary at the
consideration of RMB40 million. The disposal
was completed in June 2014.

MR ERMEE
31 December 2014
—ET-MFE+-A=+—H
24, HEeRBFASLEEYRCEFERK
(#8&)
RBEHR AEBRARBFENR
& NMIRTIT4562 579,039,000 L (=&
— =% :25,338,000/8 7T ) < A1 - AR K
Fh B A BE A SN I 6 151 B2 SN EEE 16131 &Y
HE - SERNEERE ARKATAH
RABRABEMER AEBEEESERE
RE#ETINEZEBRRITRARK K
REME-

RTBRERFARTERMNKXZFH
) R BRER A S, - 22 B E B TF IRV K E6
EAMEEL (RFAKERNKEE
E ) WIRE B 5 HIE B UM R BRER A
B RITHREB MO BN ER 7RI
I E|EOC ZBEEZRT

25. RIMEEEK

(i) R-ZE—=%F—"A=-+mA" K
RElz—HE2ENBRAR([E
7)) BER R RAEYRIEAR
AR REMTERR IR/ NDE
BEREBRRAA (TEHF])EIM W
#FOBL BRFEERMRAERE
& A BB KGR E LS ZH B
RAFBAEZVBRAETRERS
BRRZE2HMIS%IE RIEA
A R #40,000,0007T 3% HE =
BERZTE—NFNAZEK-
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25.

—mEF+ZA=+—H

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(ii)

On 26 March 2013, BAPP Ethanol Holdings
Limited (the “BAPP”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into the
Agreement with an independent third party
(the
agreed to sell all 100% equity interest in
the BAPP (Northwest) Limited held by the
BAPP, which hold 100% equity interest of
Ningxia West Bright New Resource Technology
Company Limited (the “Ningxia West Bright”)
at the consideration of RMB40 million (the
"Disposal of BAPP").

“Purchaser”), the BAPP has conditionally

The management estimated that the Disposal
of BAPP would be completed during the period
ending 30 June 2015.

The results of the discontinued operations for
the year are presented below:

25.

RIERE

(ii)

B (E)
RZE—=F=F =+ H &K
£ B 2 &M B~ aBAPP Ethanol
Holdings Limited ([BAPP ] ) £
— 2B E=F([EF]ETL
%% BAPPE BRI E L&
BAPPFf #5 2 BAPP (Northwest)
Limited (A BEEB AL ALK
MR EMMAER AR (%
BEREAF]) 2100%KH#E) 2
2E100% KR E REAARK
40,000,0007T ([BAPPHIE ) ©

EIRE M BAPPHEKREE
—E-RFNRNA=THILHMET
}E‘ZO

HERIIRERGIFEERAS
FIEAT -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA 127,784 354,307
Expenses 2 (175,639) (479,674)
Finance costs DN (13,816) (7,495)
Loss before tax from the R E TS 2 R E 1B
discontinued operations (61,671) (132,862)
Income tax Frig it - -
Loss for the year from the BRI EEB 2 FEEBE
discontinued operations (61,671) (132,862)
Add: Gain on disposal of e BERIEEEER IR
discontinued operations (HM$5E35)
(note 35) 204,550 -
Profit/(loss) from discontinued — &R IFREE XK 7 %5 (FEE)
operations, net of tax (Br#iR) 142,879 (132,862)
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25.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 25.
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the
discontinued operations classified as held for sale as at

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

RIEREXH (&)
R+ZRA=+—H5#
FRIMBEEB EERABZIER

REFEREZ%

31 December are as follows: BILATE :
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment eV 615 198,372
Prepaid land lease payments AL ES 15,831 32,894
Other intangible assets H\EEEE - 9,164
Inventories FE 38 65,732
Trade and bills receivables EWE FERREE - 11,120
Prepayments, deposit and TERTFRIE ~ ie R E A FE K FRIE
other receivables 615 14,995
Due from related parties W REE A T8 75 4,019
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 17 2,829
Assets of disposal groups classified SHEABEHEZHEMARNZ
as held for sale BE 17,191 339,125
Liabilities afE
Trade and bills payables BB SHIERER - 161,269
Other payables and accruals HibEMRIBEREETER 7,762 131,420
Interest-bearing bank and other RITRHEMETEEE
borrowings - 92,863
Due to related parties TR AL FIE = 3,367
Due to a non-controlling shareholder &+ — KB A & FE4EA
of a subsidiary IR R I8 - 31,967
7,762 420,886
Non-current Liabilities FRBAME
Deferred income RAE WA 11,137 11,854
Liabilities directly associated with the ~ EDMEAFIEREZ EEERE
assets classified as held for sale HEzaE 18,899 432,740
Net liabilities directly associated with ~ EiHE#HRIEZABE - B EF5E
the disposal groups 1,708 93,615
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25. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 25.
At 31 December 2014, no items of the discontinued
operations’ property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land (2013: HK$44,362,000 (note 14) and
HK$16,027,000 (note 15)) were pledged to secure
bank loans of the discontinued operation, respectively.

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued
operations are as follows:

ISR ()
RZE—NF+ZA=+—H I
BORIEKEEBRZ2DE - BE R
REBULBELIHEBE (T —=
% :44,362,0008 L) (M3E14) &
16,027,000/ 7T (Ff5E15) ) B4 A
BEREKIEEEEF 2RITER

RERIREXRBEL RS REFR
LN

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Net cash used in operating activities K EETAIR G 55 (3,207) (101,080)

Net cash from investing activities REEESFBHEFE - 32,470

Net cash from financing activities REEEBEREFEE = 68,735
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNESTE R B R B R R

changes, net 395 (919)

Net cash outflow Bemt ¥ (2,812) (794)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share from the discontinued operations are based on:

RIERER 2 BRER R EERR TS
RIBEA NEURRTE

2014 2013

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary REKLEREER 2N

equity holders of the parent from TRREREA

the discontinued operations FE(SH R, (F548) 158,057 (99,972)
Weighted average number of ARAESRERNLKBEERE

ordinary shares used in the basic and 3@~ hntE F 58

diluted loss per share calculation (FM$5E13)

(note 13) 1,523,485 1,195,162
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26.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

26.

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H
ENESZHRERE
RREPRCENE ZERARERIRE
EHHHEMNRESITOT

Group

KEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAETT
Within 1 month — @ AR 8,469 6,941
1 to 2 months —ZEM1E A - 19,460
Over 3 months Bid =& A 742 2,000
9,211 28,401

At 31 December 2014, no trade payables from
discontinued operations are interest bearing (2013:
HK$55,978,000 at 6% per annum) and are settled on
300-day terms. The remaining trade payables are non-
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 30-day
terms (2013: 30-day terms and 180-day terms). At 31
December 2014, no bills payable was incurred from
continuing operations (2013: HK$19,460,000 and
secured by the time deposits of the Group).

All the trade and bills payable are denominated in
Renminbi.

N_ZE—NFE+_A=+—8 HERX
BRIFEEXEB 2 ENE SRR E

— T — =% :55,978,000F LA B F
6EE) HUABBHIREE 5421
ENESERRRE  —RIZ308 R

—E— =% :30H HIR &180H HIfR)
HE- N —_FE—NF+_-_HA=+—H"
MEEEREFESCEXEB  ENER
(ZZ—=%:19,460,000/8 T ' A&
B A RERIR) o

FIBRNEZFARREGAARER
(=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E

31 December 2014
—ET-NFE+=ZHA=+—H
27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

27. HENREREGER

Group Company
xEH NG

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET TER AT
Other payables Hh & R IE 4,802 11,716 = -
Accruals fEETE R 4,446 2,926 3,418 2,876
9,248 14,642 3,418 2,876

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Other payables and accruals denominated in
other currency

Included in the other payables and accruals are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the presentation currency:

Hiy e FIARR BB FIHHR A=
Ao

LAE th & ¥ 5B 2 EL At FE Y FRIE I =T
gH

BEREMENFKANETERRAZE
BEBUINZ ERHEZ A TR :

2014 2013
RMB'000 HK$000 RMB'000 HK$'000
AR®TR TET ARBT TR
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28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

28. WMITRHEMFTFTEREE

2014 2013
Effective Effective
Group ki3 3 interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
ERR=E ZH8A TERT ERA= HI5A T
(%) (%)
Current B
Bank loans - secured FIER-BER 4.80-11.19 2015 61,216 480938 2014 67,410
Other loans - unsecured EhER-EHA - Ondemand 9
REX
61,216 67,419
2014 2013
Effective Effective
Company KRH interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
L YIES A TERT ERAE 28R THEL
(%) (%)
Current I
Other loans - unsecured EnER-a8R - - - - Ondemand 9
Notes: B EE -

(a) As 31 December 2014, the Group's bank loans of
continuing operations amounting to HK$61,216,000
(2013: HK$67,410,000) is secured by properties held
by related party (note 38(b)) of the Group.

(b) The Group’s bank and other borrowings are all
denominated in RMB.

(a) RZE—WmM&E+=—A=+—8"
REERBEKEEBZRITER
/61,216,000 L (=T — =4
67,410,000/ L) Jh AR E B — £ 8
HEFEA 2 —EWE (H:E38(b))
VEF IR o

()  AEMEESTREMEERBUAR
WeEHE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE R R Y RE

31 December 2014
—pE+=—A=+—~1
29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the

year are as follows:

29. EEBEERE
FREEHRBEBEENAGBZEHNT:

Fair value adjustments
arising from acquisition

30.

142

Group rEE of subsidiaries
WM B AR EE
AT EAR
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 107 120
Deferred tax credited to FAFFAGZGEERK
the consolidated statement of profit ~ HAh 2 EWAREK 2
or loss and other comprehensive EFEREIE (K15E10)
income during the year (note 10) (16) (15)
Exchange realignment ME 5 T B (2) 2
Gross deferred tax liabilities R+—_A=+—HZ
at 31 December EXEHIEBEER 89 107

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of HK$43,605,000 (2013: HK$366,811,000) that
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon
rate of 8% per annum at a total principal value of
HK$89,600,000 on 7 August 2014 to an independent
third party (the “bondholder”). The convertible bonds
will mature at 6 February 2016 at its principal amount
or can be converted into 128,000,000 shares at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.7 per share.

Sino Distillery Group Limited FEIBESEEER A T
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AEBAPBRAEEAZHRES
43,605,000 L (=& —=4F:
366,811,000 7T ) * FT &= 4 2 E5 B A A
R —ZRF A ERTEN - B &
RZEEERAEEHBEE RAR
EHEBETRENE BB —BREREZH
BRG] HARWETHERTER T
FRIEH % -

30. IERES
AEBR-_Z—NFN\ALBR—%B
VE=ZF(EHFFBEANETASE
% /89,600,000 L EHME X 5B F
8% WA MR ES - AIMRESFHER =T
—NFZAANBRASREIE KA Hh
BEAEFB ANERIRER0.7E T2 (BEE
¥ £128,000,0008% % 15 °



30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2014
—E-NE+-A=1+—H

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 30. ARRES (E)

The convertible bonds comprise liability component, THEEAERIEAGH D EHRILH KL
conversion component and early redemption option. IREELIEEE Y EARaES Y
The effective interest rate of the liability component HEERANRAEEES2% - EHIRAIN —F
on initial recognition is 8.2% per annum. Conversion —FENAEtBE-_ZT—NF_ANH
may occur at any time between 7 August 2014 to 6 AR E RS T - INE 5 R EEEK  HERN
February 2016. If the bonds have not been converted, “E—RFE-A/NBERB- - KRQE A HE
they will be redeemed on 6 February 2016. The IR mEEN S ER AL EES M
Company may at any time redeem the outstanding NFEBLOEEREERSTE - EL
principal amount of the bonds at face value together FREAFEASNEGEISENES -

with the accrued and unpaid coupon on the principal
amount to be redeemed. Coupon of 8% per annum
will be paid semi-annually to the bondholder.

The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated /\\\,Z? BRI SR R EZ M AR IR E 5
statement of financial position are as follows: /IR
HK$'000
FHT
Proceed of issue BITFTS A 89,600
Less: Equity conversion component W R R (19,968)
Add: Derivative financial assets m:i1ES rﬁﬂﬁ% 19,892
Liability component on initial recognition ~ R=Z—MNF N\ A+ BV S EREH
at 7 August 2014 BEES 89,524
The movement of liability component of convertible MR EFNaES > EEHIT
bonds is as follows:
HK$'000
FET
Liability component on initial recognition ~ RZZ—MNFEN\A+ BV T HEREH
at 7 August 2014 BEES 89,524
Add: Imputed finance cost e EEEE KA 2,882
Liability component at 31 December 2014 R-Z—MNFE+_-A=+—HH
BE#D 92,406
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E Yk

31 December 2014
—E-NE+-A=1+—H

31. DEFERRED INCOME 31. EEWA
The movements in deferred income during the year TREFNERELERAZ B :

are as follows:

Group
rEE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 1 January n—H—8 - 12,097
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A 5T 12 #E 85 = (510)
Transfer to assets classified as EERENR
held for sale REFELEZEE - (11,854)
Exchange realignment ME H, 58 & - 267
At 31 December R+—A=+—H - -
The balance represents the government grant for HRRARERAEERETEEREZ
construction of certain of the Group's production TR WE P RARERE I iR &
plants and has been accounted for as deferred income ZHEDEARBERECEEEREMB
under liabilities directly associated with the assets BEBTZELEWRA -ZELEWALESR
classified as held for sale in the consolidated statement BN EEE At EAFEHNRER
of financial position. Such deferred income is FEHEE AR REMMEERAREK
amortised on the straight-line basis to the consolidated A o
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the expected useful lives of the relevant
assets acquired.
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. BA&
Shares igni)
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Authorised: ERE
4,000,000,000 4,000,000,0000% ( =& —=4:
(2013: 4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,000/% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREECNAETH L BER 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BBIT R
1,626,694,876 1,626,694,876/% ( —T—=%:
(2013: 1,195,162,397) 1,195,162,3974% )
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEIEITLHE B 162,669 119,516
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32.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
During 2014, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(@

(@)

30,500,000 share options were exercised at the
exercise price ranged HK$0.62 to HK$0.83 per share,
resulting in the issue of 30,500,000 shares of HK$0.1
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$21,681,000. An amount of HK$13,131,000
was transferred from the share option reserve to the
share premium account upon the exercise of the
share options.

On 7 February 2014, the Company allotted and
issued 239,032,479 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.405 per subscription share
pursuant to the Subscription Agreement dated 21
January 2014. Further details were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 January
2014.

On 16 May 2014, the Company allotted and issued
80,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.7 per subscription share pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement dated 29 April 2014.
Further details were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 29 April 2014.

On 14 July 2014, the Company allotted and issued
82,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.7 per subscription share pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement dated 24 June 2014.
Further details were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 24 June 2014.

B R R B
31 December 2014
—E-E+-A=+—8
32. BA& (&)
R-B—mF RASHMT

(a) 30,500,00017 & I # Ty = N T § iR
0.62/8ILE0.83B L2 T BEETT
{# - B E£1730,500,000% & R EE
0. 18Tz iR BRENRER (B
B A7) 21,681,000/8 70 - 1T E B
fE#ET% - 13,131,000 c 2 £ 5B A
BIEFHEERERG ZER-

(b) RZZE—WNMFE_/F+H RIEAHA
—E-ME-A-+—AZ2RE®H
O ARAIRERRBERH0.405%
To 2 R B B % [2 #17239,032,479
NRREE AL < — H BN AR A
HER—T—MNF—A=-+—HZA
ﬁ!ﬁo

(© R-ZZ—NFERA+<A RIEEH
AZZE-NENA-+AHZRERDR
& AN AR ERRERD0.7ETE
RS E A0 3 12 #1780,000,0000% 72 i
f&f o E—HFBHRAAR AR
—E-MENAZt+ABZ Ao

(d) RZZT—NFELA+MNA - RIEAEH
B-E—EXA-TMNE 2 RER
# AR RRERARERDTETZ
R (B B 3% J2 3£1782,000,000/% :RHE
(87 i == - WA/ N =R
TE-EXNA B Z AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E

31 December 2014

32.

33.

share options issued under the scheme are included in
note 33 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s
shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 23 May 2007 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.
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33.

—mE+=—A=+—H
SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 32. IRA(8])
A summary of the transactions during the year and last REBEAREFEIZRGIBE (BREXRND
year with reference to the above movements in the AR EITIRA EaiEs) ) mT
Company'’s issued share capital is as follows:
Number of Share
shares premium
in issue Issued capital account Total
BRIT
RGOBE EERTREX  RORER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR
At 1 January 2013, RZE—=F—Hf—H"
31 December 2013 and —E-ZF
1 January 2014 +ZA=+—-H
R=—Z—ME—HF—H 1,195,162,397 119,516 718,569 838,085
Subscription shares allotted and E@E?"&?ﬁ‘TTZ
issued RERND 401,032,479 40,103 170,093 210,196
Share options exercised BT RERE 30,500,000 3,050 31,762 34,812
1,626,694,876 162,669 920,424 1,083,093
Share options BB AR
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the RAFERREG E METEIE T 2 2 %17

R O R IS B D I A A% R BT 233 -

BT

ARARERETE ([518)) B
IR EZE KRN T S AR 2 E AL
EHERHNEERSEE FENEE
RERECEARTNES (BB
HRTES) AKEHMES FA5H
ERFBBEHER AEBEF A2
A IRER R AN B M B A AME ] SRR AR A
R-FENR_ZFETLFRA-_T=HE
£ BRIERBEUESER] BRI E
% HEBI0%F



33.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme,
if earlier.

33.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2014
—E-UF+=-A=+—H
BEiREE (F&)
IR ER IR AT 8IR BV RIT (R BB AR
B # B ARITREEE R AR RMEM
R E BTN EI10% © IREM121E A
HEAEF SRS AR HERBERE
AIBEITHRGO RS E RN AR RZH
AR R B B TR 891 % » BEIME
HBiA L PR B A B AR B AR R IR R K
itk

AARRREE THAHK T ZREHL
REHB R AR LB RERL B I
TERFLME UM AARRTER
RBBUIFATETRRENBEAR
I B B AR P AT (] 1 218 A BRI BB AN
BRI R 2 BT A0 0.1% A8 ME (R
BERE L ABRAARRDERTE)B
35,000,000 7T * BRIV IR KRS
RS

AERANEAMEBETRBERER 7]
PRE2 B2 B ARSI L BRE
MRE2 ROBRENTENHESE
EOREBHEFS AREHTER
EEBAE A IS Z IR (ARE
ERE)EFH0F -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g e E

31 December 2014
—E-NE+-A=1+—H

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33. BERAEE (E)
The exercise price of share options is determinable ERENTEERESET BENAE
by the directors, but may not be less than the RUTESE: VAR TIRHONIZERE
higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the R A B BB S PR UG T (B ¢ (VAN A J1R%
Company's shares on the date of offer of the share MARBEEIEZ A ARER S B M
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price BT miEg  RGiDA R a iR mDRIESR
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days HEIRE(E -

immediately preceding the date of offer, and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of

offer.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to BERSREND AR T3 A AURER RS B 3k R A%
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BAL FIEERRET o
The following share options were outstanding under RER - N 2|18 T BEIR#E S KIT
the Scheme during the year: 15
2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
Average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
per share of options per share of options
¥ BhE g1 ke
BRTEE #HB BRIEE g8
HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
BT TR BT T
At 1 January n—HA—H 0.74 47,350 0.73 64,290
Granted during the year FARE 0.754 78,600 - -
Exercised during the year FNTRE 0.71 (30,500) - -
Lapsed during the year FRXK 0.84 (5,250) 0.70 (16,940)
At 31 December Wt+ZA=+—H 0.75 90,200 0.74 47,350
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s FERNEEEHERE Y BRIAQ TG
shares immediately before the dates on which the B NRE e T A S A%0.836/8 It °

share options were exercised during the year was
HK$0.836 per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

33. EBRAESTE (&)
RMEBR RITEBRENTEER

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TEERIT
period are as follows:
2014 —E—mE
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TREE™ 1TEH
HK$
‘000 per share
TR BRET
50 0.73 26-04-2012 to 25-04-2015
5,050 0.83 13-09-2012 to 12-09-2015
39,300 0.754 23-07-2014 to 22-07-2016
39,300 0.754 23-07-2015 to 22-07-2017
6,500 0.694 31-10-2014 to 30-10-2017
90,200
2013 —E-=
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BIREHE TEfE* 1TEHA
‘000 HK$ per share
Fhix BB T
2,500 0.62 12-07-2011 to 11-07-2014
9,550 0.83 13-09-2011 to 12-09-2014
50 0.73 26-04-2012 to 25-04-2015
100 1.152 04-05-2012 to 03-05-2015
2,500 0.62 12-07-2012 to 11-07-2015
9,550 0.83 13-09-2012 to 12-09-2015
5,000 0.66 10-10-2012 to 09-10-2015
5,000 0.66 10-10-2013 to 09-10-2016
100 1.152 04-05-2013 to 03-05-2016
6,500 0.694 31-10-2013 to 30-10-2016
6,500 0.694 31-10-2014 to 30-10-2017
47,350
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to * FE AR TALAR KA R R IR A H A

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during
the year was HK$16,780,000 (HK$0.21 each) (2013:
Nil). The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$2,757,000 during the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: HK$5,100,000).

AR BHFERT - BRENTTEE
JA{EH % -

FAFHEREN A FEA16,780,000
B (BR021%ET) (ZE—=%F:
T) AEBREBEE-_T—NFE+=
A=+ —RALFERRERERAX
2,757,000/ 7T ( =& — =4 : 5,100,000
PEIL) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E

31 December 2014
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H

33.  SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 33. BEIRREIE (@)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted RAREERHBEEEEREATZER
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant, EHBEERA - EARESIERGHE &
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms EZEEREFENER L EE TR
and conditions upon which the options were granted. GIFFEER M EE LR
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:
2014
Grant date
i B
23-7-2014
Dividend yield (%) AR B2 (%) -
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 46 - 48
Historical volatility (%) FE 2R 18 (%) 46 — 48
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 3B T &= (%) 0.39-0.8
Expected life of options (years) BRETEESE (F) 2-3
Weighted average share price niEFHERRE
(HK$ per share) (BB 0.754

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 90,200,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 90,200,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$9,020,000 and share
premium of HK$58,983,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 90,200,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 5.5% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.
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BRENERFHREEE=FNESL
BEAE T ERITERANER-
T8 HA R 0 2 AR R S22 0 R #E R AR KB B
MIERNERR T —ERERER-

55 L R M A L A T B A A M
M -

REEHR  NRRRET BB T RITE
#Y) B A% #E /290,200,00017 72 K A &) 3R
BERERET BEITHEHKRITHEER
T 8 B B AN A B8] E%4790,200,0000% B8 5N
B T - 58 MR ZAK9,020,0007% T K %
7% {858,983,000/%8 7T (R 1Bk #1754
) e

REZEF BRI AEBE KA FRIE
=+ £17590,200,00017 & B AE M AR 1T1E

HERARARNZBZEEBITRMNHE
5.5% o



34. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2014

—mE+=-/A=+—8
34. f#fE
Group (a) AEME
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and REBNFEE RBEEENREE
the movements therein for the current and MEREE) B2 RN S E
prior years are presented in the consolidated TR FFE0HE AL 2E®R
statement of changes in equity on page 60 of KR
the consolidated financial statements.
The merger reserve of the Group represents the RNREEWASHBEBED TR
difference between the nominal value of the HEEE B -FTFEZEFE+— A
shares issued and the nominal value of shares —+hBEE-E—ZEE—HF+—
of the subsidiaries acquired at the time of the HETEEEARTIKENE A
group reorganisation on 29 December 2000 AR EERE N ESE
and 12 January 2010.
Company (b) Z&RAF
Share Share Convertible
premium option bonds Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
R EER BRERE TRRESREE 25t ER @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Lk FhT FET T FAx FET
Balance at 1 January 2013 WZE-=%-A-H
ket 718,569 22,389 - (701,793) 39,165
Total comprehensive loss TEEREEELH
for the year - - - (2,981) (2,981)
Equity-settled share option R ERRERH
arrangements 33 - 5,100 - - 5,100
Transfer of share option PR RIE X e
reserve upon the lapse of BEREREER
share options - (7,539) - - (7,539)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=4+ZA
=+ -BEEH 718,569 19,950 = (704,774) 33,745
Total comprehensive loss rEERHFBELHE
for the year - - - (26,224) (26,224)
Issue of convertible bonds RO BRRES 30 - - 19,968 - 19,968
Issue of share by allotment FREEMETRR 2 170,093 - - - 170,093
Exercise of share option iR E 31,762 (13,131) - - 18,631
Equity-settled share option REEERREL S
arrangements 33 - 2,751 - - 2,751
Transfer of share option RERER B
reserve upon the lapse of ERREREER
share options - (155) - - (155)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-MF
TZA=1+-H 920,424 9,421 19,968 (730,998) 218,815
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31 December 2014
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H
RESERVES (continued)

34.

152

(b)

Company (continued)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are
yet to be exercised, as further explained
in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.5 to the consolidated
financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account
when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to accumulated losses should the
related options expire or be forfeited.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2014
—E-UF+=-A=+—H

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEMWE2RQTE
a) The Group disposed the 75% interests in a) NREBFBIUNRSREARK
Harbin China Distillery Company Limited 40,000,000C B E=H HE
("Harbin China”) to independent third parties MEREREEBEARE AR ([MBE
for a cash consideration of RMB40,000,000. ERE ) 2 75%MAE - st fE B

The ordinary resolution to approve the disposal ZEBREEEN -_E—PUE N
was duly passed by the shareholders by way of BRABTZREERASES
poll at the adjourned EGM held on 6 June 2014 FEREUEEER R ARIER
and after that date, Harbin China ceased to be BEC-RZA%B BKRAETFRAE
the subsidiary of the Group. EARERZHE AT
2014
HK$°000
FET
Total consideration BmRE 50,352
Less: Net liabilities including in B TNARIEZ BEFE
assets of disposed groups of: (BFALEEBZEE) :
Property, plant and equipment M HWE LR 180,275
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT LA & FKI8 15,679
Other intangible assets HEEEE 8,876
Inventories BE 18,152
Trade and bills receivables JEWE 5 RN KR’ 3,330
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFRIE - 1R & K H Ath R UK IE
other receivables 11,519
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeFED 3,036
Trade and bills payables ENESERNEE (125,068)
Other payables and accruals H fth fE AT 5018 &fﬁ%ﬁﬁ (97,272)
Due to related parties JESTREE A L3k (53,684)
Due to a non-controlling EA—FEEB A T#T A% A% 3R SR I8
shareholder of a subsidiary (31,638)
Interest-bearing bank and RITREMETEEE
other borrowings (92,006)
(158,801)
Add: Release of exchange difference Al : 74 (& B 43 0] [ 55, = %8
upon disposal 38,101
Add: Non-controlling interests upon Al : A H & 8 2 FE4E AL A 25
disposal (42,704)
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary  HE&HIEB A 7 2 Wi 204,550
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b e E

31 December 2014
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H
35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

35. LWEKELE (&)

a) (continued) a) (%)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash HEZRERBSZEMZFR
equivalents in respect of the disposal is as AT :
follows:
2014
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReRE 50,352
Cash and cash equivalents HERSRBECEEY
disposed of (3,036)
Net inflow of cash and cash HEMBARcREMASEEM 2 FRA
equivalents in respect of
the disposal of the subsidiary 47,316
b) On 16 December 2014, the Group disposed off b) RZZE-—NWF+ZA+H K

the entire issued share capital of Ningxia Kelong
Industrial Company Limited to an independent
third party for a cash consideration of

EE RS REARKS,000,000
TEEEREEEXEBRARZE
BEBITHRALE T —ZBULE

RMB6,000,000. =7
2014
HK$'000
THET
Total consideration BRE 7,496
Less: Net assets of the subsidiary B HERMBARZEEFE
upon disposal
Property, plant and equipment M- BB K& 1,614
Inventories BE 5,307
Prepayment, deposits and TERTFIE - 12 & R H A B YGRIE
other receivables 4,490
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 8
Other payables and accruals Hih M RIBEREETER (31)
11,388
Add: Release of exchange e L ERELER 5
difference upon disposal 23
Add: Non-controlling interests e BERZIFERER
upon disposal 4,296
Less: Goodwill eliminated upon B R R
disposal (467)
Loss on disposal of the subsidiary ~ H &M E QA 2 EE (40)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEMEBALAT (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash BT ENBATIZIRERRESEEY
equivalents in respect of the disposal of the subsidiary TEASHE ST
is as follows:
2014
HK$'000
FEx
Cash consideration ReRE 7,496
Cash and bank balances disposed of FItE 2B e RIRITER (8)
Net inflow of cash and cash FRTEEMBArR R e kReEE
equivalents in respect of Ym A F 5
the disposal of the subsidiary 7,488
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EEER
Details of the Group's bills payable and bank loans, AEEUREEEEFERR 2 EBNER
which are secured by the assets of the Group, are KARITE FREEIE D R E P B 1 Rk i 5
included in notes 26 and 28, respectively to the 26528 °
financial statements.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. REMHELH
The Group leases certain properties under operating AEERBKEHETHHEERLETY
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are X-MEHEBTER—ERFHEB-
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.
At 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company R-ZE—MF+_A=+—H r&H
had total future minimum lease payments under non- KRR RIRB T A HH L S LA
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: AREEEREELT
Group Company
X&E NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ThR TAET TERT TAT

Within one year —FR 4,965 3,594 759 338
In the second to fifth years REZEERF 6,146 4,469 579 -
11,111 8,063 1,338 338
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38.

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 38. BEALXRENGER
In addition to the transactions detailed (a) BZEEEHBHEEMIBM
elsewhere in these consolidation financial Hit TGN REBNAKNEE
statements, the Group had the following NEREATHEUTRS:
transactions with related parties during the
year:
Group
A%EE
2014 2013

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

i THERT FET
Transaction with EARAE N A

related companies*: BUTRG*:
Rent paid BENES (i) 1,223 844
Interest expenses FBHAX (i) = 160
* Related companies are companies under * BEANR AN T —EEY
significant influence of a director of the HEEAZE T
Company.

Notes: MizE
(i) The office and warehouse rental expenses 0) WAEREEHRESHEX IR

(b)

were made according to market prices.

(i) The interest expenses arose from the loans
advanced from Orientelite Investments
Limited, which was unsecured and bore
interest at 3-month HIBOR+1% per annum.
The loans was repaid during the year.

Other transactions with related parties

As at year ended 2013, the Group’s bank loan
of HK$3,816,000 was secured by a property
held by Guangzhou TianTian Friendship Co.,
Ltd., a company under significant influence of a
predecessor director of the Company. As at year
ended 2014, no Group's bank loan was secured
by the above company.

The Group’s bank loan of HK$61,216,000
(2013: HK$63,594,000) was secured by
properties held by Linxianghuayin Properties
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“B&
MEREXREERARRAA"), a related
party of the Group, and guaranteed by Mr.
Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Jiang Jiancheng, directors
of the Group, Linxianghuayin Properties
Investment and Development Co., Ltd., Ningxia
West Bright, Harbin China Distillery Co., Ltd.
and the Company.
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31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 38. BEAITXEREE (&)

(continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: () BHRE A Tt o M AREBEEE:
Group Company
A58 b
2014 2013 2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Mz THR THL T THL
Due from related parties ~ EWEEALHE
Guangdong Baichengwandian [ER B & E#E
Investment and Development  ZEAR A A
Co., Ltd. - 4,007 - -
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TEELS (i 76 77 = -
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TERESE (i) = 4 = -
Shenzhen Huagin Investment  RIIZEHREHLE
and Development Co,, Ltd. ~ ARAH (il 1,041 - = -
Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial ~~ FIIFREKEEERAF
Co., Ltd. (iv) 13,867 10,174 - -
Guangzhou Wine and Liquor M BB ZER A
Distribution Co., Ltd. (v) 287 302 - -
Hunan Diancang Jiugui HEREERBHE
Liquor Co., Ltd. BRAT = 746 = -
15,271 15,310 - -
Due to related parties ERBEALHE
Guangzhou TianTian EMNER () 10,829 12,295 = -
Mr. Qu Shuncai RIEA %4 (i 307 313 = -
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TRERE (i) - 1,089 - 860
Orientelite Investments Limited Orientelite Investments
Limited (i) - 11,550 - 11,550
Shenzhen Huagin Investment  RIIZEHREHLE
and Development Co., Ltd. ~ BR2D A (i) = 20,079 = -
Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial I TRKE £
Co., Ltd. AR (iv) - 10951 - -
Shenzhen Huayin Jinshajiang ~ RIHEE S T
Investment Development REZRERAA
Co., Ltd - 12,719 - -
11,136 68,996 - 12,410
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 38. BEALTRNERLL (&)

(continued)

()  Outstanding balances with related parties: (c)
(continued)
Notes:

(i) Companies under significant influence of a
director of the Company.

(i) A director of the Company.
(iii) Companies controlled by Mr. Jiang Jiancheng.
(iv) Companies controlled by Mr. Jiang Jianjun

(v) Company controlled by the non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary.

Except for the amount due to Orientelite
Investments Limited, which bore interest at
3-month HIBOR+1% per annum, the balances
with the related parties are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

BEEEAL ZEREESER:
(%)
P&t :

FRATIARRA T*%%‘%ﬁ
HBEBAFEZR

(i) Z
(i) RARESE-

(iif) TR S Z A
(iv) TREEREEHZA

v) — [ B8~ B FFHE AR B R P2
PN Sk

)

B FE fit Orientelite Investments
Limited X IB I G F3E A FHR
TRZEFRE+IEF BN B E
AT ZHEHABEER 2RI
EEF R -

(d) Compensation of key management d FEEFTEZEBASZHE
personnel
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Short term employee benefits 42 #i{& 8 12 7 1,129 821
Post-employment benefits BBk 12 12 71 17 12
Equity-settled share option NI 2 BRI 2
expense 229 890
Total compensation paid to key S FFEEEBAEZ
management personnel HERsE 1,375 1,723

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The related party transactions in respect of
items (a)(i) above also constituted de minimis
continuing connected transactions as defined in
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2014

— ==

Z—-E+-—A=+—H

39, 2WMIEBESDE
RBEBMR SESRITEAERAERN

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:
Financial assets SRIEE
Group Company
31| N
2014 2013 2014 2013
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at fair  assets at fair assets at fair
value through  value through  value through  value through
profitorloss  profitorloss  profitorloss  profit or loss
BRAYE BAYE BRAYHE BRTE
STABEN  HABEN  HABRN  HABED
SREE SHEE SREE PHEAE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MiaE T THT T FEL
Derivative financial assets ThEeREE 23 7,745 - 7,745 -
Group Company
3] PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables receivables receivables
EXER EXR EFR EAR
R EWFHE R ElFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mg T THET T TAET
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRE 2R E 18 = - 468,556 167,529
Investment in an associates RBERR 2 RE 19 84,577 6,200 = -
Trade and bills receivables FRESEINEE 8,925 4,630 = -
Financial assets included in prepayments, €t AFEZE
deposits and other receivables R REMER
TEZEREE 173,817 10,754 - -
Due from related parties U ERE AL 15,271 15,310 = -
Pledged deposits BERAER - 7,784 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 79,150 25,487 20
361,740 70,165 468,564 167,549
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31 December 2014
—E-NFE+-A=1+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

39. &@RIASE(E)

40.

(continued)
Financial assets (continued) SREE (&)
Group Company
AEH A2
2014 2013 2014 2013
Financial Financial Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
at amortised atamortised  at amortised at amortised
cost cost cost cost
REB#HA: BEENA. REERAZ  REERAZ
SRERE THER SRERE ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET
Trade and bills payables EREHTERER 9,211 28,401 - -
Financial liabilities included in BEAEAMERFER
other payables and accruals Bt BR 2RER 9,248 14,642 3,418 2876
Interest-bearing bank and FITREMEEEE
other borrowings 61,216 67,419 - 9
Due to related parties ENBEATHE 11,136 68,996 - 12,410
Convertble bonds THRRES 92,406 - 92,406 -
183,217 179,458 95,824 15,295

The carrying amounts of the above balances
approximate to their fair values.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts
due from/to related parties, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

160  sino Distillery Group Limited FE B EEEER 2 7

Ynual Report 2014 F 3§

40.

bRz REERAE A FERS -

TREREE 2 BERBEEK

AEBzTESRMIABERITREM
AEEE B ENEEATRIER
RekReFAY - 2FeMTAZE
ZRANRERESIFARBEZMSE -
AEEBHNRERKRE SRR RENES
EREZHREMEREENBE ZF
TMEELBEDIRNEXZBHRERE
Ao

AEECRMTAZEIZARSNEAE
B ANERERR - EERBRERESE SR
R-BEEERAMHEEEETHEAR
B WL AT o



40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2014
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 40. 2 HERTECHERKE ()
POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk T =R &
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market AREFASTHSMNEFGHZERTEH
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short REBTECHEERB Rt M=
term borrowings with fixed interest rates. Therefore, EARRENE TS EAER 2 EEE
any future variations in interest rates will not have a REAKEZE
significant impact on the results of the Group.
Foreign currency risk SNk @ b
The Group's businesses are located in Mainland China REEZEBMNRREKE MTAR
and all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of SGHPUNRBEET  REFB AL BE
the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in LBEUAEKDE: S TRTES
RMB, except for certain bank balances denominated DA T R ETTHERR N o AN £ 0 %
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. The SF L AN R B SR | B o
Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRETRECMEBEEMEBEHTENE
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible T }\Eﬁé}[?z/\ﬁ—jﬁgﬂﬁjm#&%
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other HA 5% Y 7N 2 5] 42 25 Y R ©
variables held constant, of the Group's equity.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in equity*
ARBER &
o, 1,
(R4 ) (R 4) *
% HK$'000
FET
2014 —E-F
If the Hong Kong dollar WMEBTHARERE
weakens against the RMB (5) (12,642)
If the Hong Kong dollar mETHAREHE
strengthens against the RMB 5 12,642
2013 —s-=%
If the Hong Kong dollar METHARERE
weakens against the RMB (5) 1,560
If the Hong Kong dollar WMETHAREE
strengthens against the RMB 5 (1,560)

* Excluding accumulated losses

* TEHEANEE
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40.

162

—mE+—A=+—8

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, amounts
due from related parties and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
assets.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed
in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22
to the financial statements, respectively.
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31 December 2014
“E-NFE+-A=1+—H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. SRERESECEEREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk REBESRE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds REFMNBEHE M R HE T AR
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool SEBER -ZITEHGESRIALS
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments BVEE (NEWE SRERLERE )T H
and financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) HERIER S BEEANRE -

and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance ANREFE 7 BEAERETER L HME
between continuity of funding and flexibility through EERTEESHEETEREFE-

the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities RIREHI R NEB R AQAFEREET
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the #1E KRB Z T B ED B R
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: T
2014 2013
Within Within
Group 1year 1to2years Total 1 year Total
x5E —FR —ZEWF L —FR At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TR TERT TR TR

Trade and bills payables ERESTENEE 9,211 = 9,211 28,401 28,401
Financial liabilities included in 23 AE A ENZIER
other payables and accruals FEEJFE’% JEmEE 9,248 = 9,248 14,642 14,642
Interest-bearing bank and Hinst BEE
other borrowings 61,216 - 61,216 67,419 67,419
Due to related parties JERTREE A L 708 11,136 = 11,136 68,996 68,996
Convertible bonds ik ES - 92,406 92,406 - -
90,811 92,406 183,217 179,458 179,458
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.
POLICIES (continued)

TRERERE BERBEEK (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBELEK (&)
2014 2013
Within Within
Company 1year 1to2years Total 1 year Total
LN —FR —EWF CL —FR At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TERT T TR

Financial liabilities included in ~ E&t AEMEMZAR
other payables and accruals BHERzSBAR 3,418 - 3,418 2,876 2,876
Interest-bearing bank and RAOREMTEEE
other borrowings - - - 9 9
Due to related parties JERTRIE AL F0E - - = 12,410 12,410
Convertible bonds aARES - 92,406 92,406 - -
3,418 92,406 95,824 15,295 15,295

Capital management

EXREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013.
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt.
The Group’s policy is to maintain an optimal capital
structure which reduces cost of capital. Net debt
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties and a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, convertible bonds less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Capital
includes equity attributable to owners of the parent.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

40.

B R IR B
31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H

TRERER BERBEEK (&)

REBESRE (&
AEBAEXRB B R (EHFERINA
BARNERFE) ERERNFBR &K
SENBRRASEFRBRENELNBEL
o BREARRA B FREERNE
ZH AR EE - B RN R L ER &
A IRITREMEBEE  EBNBEEAL
Ko — BT 8 1% B FEHR AR A IR K08 ~ Al 8
BiEH URERE RBASFEMRE
EREFER-BEXRBEEQRES ARAG
s o MMEHIR  ERBBLRINT:

Group 2014 2013
rEE HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Interest-bearing bank and other RITREMTEEBE

borrowings 61,216 67,419
Trade and bills payables JEN B SR IE KRR 9,211 28,401
Other payables and accruals HhENRIERETE R 9,248 14,642
Due to related parties TR AL FIE 11,136 68,996
Convertible bonds R ES 92,406 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BoReRREEEY (79,150) (25,487)
Pledged deposit B RFER - (7,784)

Net debt (ERIE] 104,067 146,187
Capital =N 293,788 (41,189)
Capital and net debt BARRIERF5E 397,855 104,998
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 26% 139%

Fair value measurement
Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure the
Group's derivative carried at fair value had been
categorised as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy
which is defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

ATEHE
AFEAREERATFEARNITETARR
FRNMERNT 2 BABBERTE
BRAPRE=H ATFEHEREED
T

. HEEESR ERE BTSN R
B (CREHE) (F—R) -

. BREE—MATE IR TR(B LASNIE AT
REENBEBEEE (WER) KM
% (AR EER) R A SR
(BZH) -~
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E

31 December 2014
—mEF+ZA=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

TRERER BERBEK (&)

ANFEE (F)

. WIERABRMSEENEE
KABBEZEARE (AR #ER
BABIE) (B=4)

(\\?Aﬁﬁﬁkﬂk/ﬁﬁ‘?& AFEENS
MEENABDRATRFEER:

follows:
2014 - Group
“E-ME-XKE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Rt -t ] E=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Total
TER TER TER @t
Assets gE
Derivatives financial instruments AMBRESTITE
under convertible bonds cRIA - 7,745 7,745

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur. There was no financial instrument
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013.

The loss arising on changes in fair value of the
derivatives are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$12,174,000. Please refer to note
23 for the movements in the derivatives included in
Level 3 fair value hierarchy for period from 7 August
2014 (date of issuance of convertible bonds) to 31
December 2014.

The derivative financial instruments under convertible
bonds are denominated in HK$. Fair values have been
determined by reference to the valuation made by an
independent qualified valuer by using the Binomial
Model that includes some assumption that are not
supportable by observable market prices or rates. The
significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is the expected volatility at 47%. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected volatility. As at 31 December 2014, it is
estimated that with all other variables held constant,
an increase/decrease in the expected volatility by 1%
would have increased/decreased the Group's profit.
There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year.
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41.

42.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 22 January 2015, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into the
Joint Venture Agreement with Shenzhen
Shenda Hengye, pursuant to which the
Company and Shenzhen Shenda Hengye
agreed to form the Joint Venture Company
with a proposed name FII K& E
7% B R A A (Shenzhen Dahuangyuan
E-Commerce Co. Ltd.) to be principally engaged
in E-commerce business in Qianhai area in the
PRC, which principally include food trading and
electrical and mechanical equipment business.
Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement, the
estimated total registered capital of the Joint
Venture Company will be RMB200 million.
Each of the subsidiary of the Company and
Shenzhen Shenda Hengye is expected to
contribute RMB60 million and RMB140 million,
representing 30% and 70% of the estimated
total registered capital of the Joint Venture
Company respectively. Details are set out in the
announcement dated 22 January 2015.

On 4 March 2015, the company completed
the Acquisition and the Company Capital
Injection pursuant to the Shenzhen Food
Joint Venture Agreement. On completion
of the Acquisition and the Meiming Capital
Injection, FINIE K REZERMEXER AT
(Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution
Limited) has a registered capital of RMB10
million and is owned by Company as to 50%
and Beidahuang Marketing Co. as to 50%.
Accordingly, JFIFE R ERMELEERAF
(Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution
Limited) has become a 50% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company and its financial
results will be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group. Details are set out in
the announcement dated 4 March 2015.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
March 2015.

Bt 75 R AR B

31 December 2014
—E-NE+=-A=1+—H
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEMBEHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and ~ TERBMMAEEBEREANRFE 2 EERE
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five  E- -BENIFEREZ  HREEEE T 2K
financial years, as extracted from the published audited — B EME  WEIEBEEY| EFHLE-
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,

is set out below.

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-RHILEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL FEL THL FEL
(Restated)
(&E=5))
Revenue 9N 195,260 440,785 199,325 384,859 439,177
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ANER (F8) 101,043 (161,594) (334,586) (151,248) (113,213)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEHES,/ (FX) 16 (395) 12,928 11,838 938
Profit/(loss) for the year KEEERN/ (F]) 101,059 (161,989) (321,658) (139,410) (112,275)
Attributable to: TFIRE:
Owners of the parent BRAIREA 117,810 (126,770) (277,800) (125,547) (105,012)
Non-controlling interests SRR (16,751) (35.219) (43,858) (13,863) (7,263)
101,059 (161,989) (321,658) (139,410) (112,275)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE - -BERFEERER
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL FEL AL FAL
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 505,479 560,599 520,543 730,558 758,959
TOTAL LIABILITIES EE0E (207,576) (619,041) (427,729) (327,239) (254,136)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERRES (4,115) 17,253 (10,694) (54,601) (65,644)
293,788 (41,189) 82,120 348,718 439,179
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